
York Catholic District School Board 
 
Memo To: Audit Committee Members 
  cc:  Other Trustees 

From:  Carol Cotton, Chair of the Audit Committee 
Anna Chan, CFO & Treasurer of the Board 

Date:  November 4, 2016 

Re:  Audit Committee Meeting November 8, 2016 
 
 
The Audit Committee meeting is scheduled as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The primary focus of the November 8, 2016 Audit Committee meeting will be to facilitate review 
and approval the 2015-2016 Year-End Audited Financial Statements which will be submitted to the 
Board for approval at a Special Board meeting to be held on November 8, 2016 following the Audit 
Committee meeting, for submission to the Ministry of Education.  
 
An In Camera Session and a Regular Session of the Committee has been scheduled to facilitate 
processing of agenda items.  The proposed sequence of agenda items to process the approval of the 
Financial Statements, as well as to address other agenda items, as follows: 
 

1. In Camera Session, Agenda Items 1 – 8 and 11 
2. Recess into Regular Session 
3. In Camera Session, complete Agenda Items 10 and 12-17 

 
The meeting will commence with the In Camera session; the agenda consists of one presentation 
items and five discussion/information items  as well as an allocation of time for supplementary 
private discussions with RIAT representatives, Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditor 
representatives and with Administration.  
 
The Regular Session agenda consists of one three-part Presentation item, two Action items and two 
discussion/information items.  Note:  Supplementary reports associated with the year-end financial 
position have been provided in previous Committee and Board meetings.  
 
Should time not permit review/processing all of items on the agenda, these items will be deferred to 
a future meeting.  Should you have any questions, please contact Anna Chan or the staff member 
identified on the agenda. 
 
 
 
 

Tuesday, November 8, 2016 
Room 100 

Catholic Education Centre 
3:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. 

(light refreshments will be served) 

Please inform Karen Errett (ext. 12301) should you be unable to attend.   
Also, please confirm attendance to ensure quorum. 



 
YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 

 
 
 
 

(Regular Session) 
Tuesday, November 8, 2016 

3:00 – 5:00 p.m. 
Room 100, Catholic Education Centre 

Page(s) 
 

1. Call to Order and Prayer C. Cotton 
2. Roll Call C. Cotton 
3. Approval of Agenda C. Cotton 
4. Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting C. Cotton 1 
5. Declaration of Conflict of Interest  
6. Business Arising from the Minutes of the Previous Meeting:   

Nil 
7. Next Meeting Date:  TBD, 2017 
8. Report from In Camera Session of Audit Committee C. Cotton verbal 

 
Presentation Item(s): 

9. 2015-16 Year-End Financial Statements Review  
a. 2015-16 Year-End Financial Report A. Chan/J. Porter 2-58 
b. Draft Financial Statements A. Chan/L. Giambattista 59-83 
c. PowerPoint “2015-16 Year-End Financial Report –  A. Chan/J. Porter 84-132 

November 8, 2016 – Audited Financial Statements 
for the Year Ended August 31, 2016” 

Action Item(s): 
10. Approval of YCDSB 2015-2016 Audited Financial Statements A. Chan/J. Porter 133 
11. Approval of YCDSB & YRDSB EDC Financial Statements A. Chan/J. Porter 134-148 
Discussion/Information Item(s): 
12. Annual Audit Committee Report to the Ministry of 

Education J. Porter 149-153 
13. Ministry Memo 2016 SB31  Update on Regional Internal 

Audit Consistency Measures J. Porter 154-169 
Future Items:  

Nil 
 
Adjournment  

 

 

 

Audit Committee Agenda 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lord,  
may everything we do begin with your 

inspiration 
 and continue with your help,  

so that all our prayers and works  
may begin in you  

and by you be happily ended. 
 

We ask this through Christ our Lord. 
 

Amen 
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UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 
    York Catholic District School Board 
 
 

MINUTES 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

(Regular Session) 
 
A Regular session meeting of the Audit Committee was held at the Catholic Education Centre, 320 
Bloomington Road West, Aurora, Ontario, on Tuesday, September 28, 2016, commencing at 3:01 
p.m. 
 
PRESENT: 
Committee Members: C. Cotton, M. Mogado, M. Marchese 
Other Trustees:  
External Committee Members: P. Laframboise 
Administration: A. Chan,  J. Porter, F. Bagley L. Giambattista, C. Logel, 

J. Selvadurai, P. Bellerby 
RIAT Team:   D. Johnston, Regional Internal Audit Manager 
Other Guests: A. Ferrari, A. Frizzel, Grant Thornton LLP  
 H. Manassis [3:17 pm] 
Absent with Notice: M. Tedesco 
Recording: K. Errett  
Presiding: C. Cotton, Committee Chair  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  

Anna Chan, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Board, called the meeting to order at 
3:01 p.m.  

 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA  

Motion: Mogado/Marchese 
THAT the Agenda be approved as presented.   

– MOTION CARRIED – 
 
3. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES  

Motion: Mogado/Laframboise 
THAT the Minutes of the April  19, 2016 Audit Committee meeting be approved as presented. 

– MOTION CARRIED – 
4. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Nil 

5. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
Nil 

6. NEXT MEETING DATE:  November 8, 2016 

7. PRESENTATION ITEMS: 
Nil 
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8. ACTION ITEMS: 
Nil 

9. DISCUSSION/ INFORMATION ITEM(S):  
a) TORONTO AREA REGIONAL INTERNAL AUDIT COORDINATING & 

STEERING COMMETTEE (TA-RIA-CAC) UPDATE  
J. Porter, Coordinating Manager of Budget and Audit Services, provided an update as Host 
Board lead, on the activities of the provincially coordinated Regional Internal Audit (RIA) 
initiative. As previously reported, the provincial RIA initiative, which is overseen by CODE 
(D. Duszczyszyn, Provincial Coordinator), continues to use the TA-RIA-CSC as a role model 
for other RIATs in the Province and further to seek efficiencies in delivering the initiative.  
Numerous meetings, which provides the opportunity to discuss common issues among the 
boards, have been held over the course of the past years which has attributed to a successful 
model. 
 

b) TERM OF EXTERNAL AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
Anna Chan, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Board, provided an update on the 
expiration of the current term of service for the two External Audit Committee Members, 
which will be ending on April 17, 2017.  

As per O. Reg. 361/10 “Audit Committees”, the term of an individual who is not a board 
member may not be appointed to the Audit Committee for more than two terms unless no 
other candidate is identified through the advertisement process.  A posting and advertisement 
for their replacements will be required.    

As such, External Member, P. Laframboise, advised that at the end of the second term he 
would be seeking other opportunities and would not be returning for another term. 
Administration will be moving forward to begin the process of advertising for external 
members for the next three-year term. 

c) YCDSB LEADING PRACTICES REPOSITORY SUBMISSIONS 
A report was provided to inform the Committee of the status of the Internal Audit Leading 
Practices Repository, a resource for SBO’s and RIAMs to have access to current/relevant 
audit reference material intended to highlight leading/exemplary practices and 
recommendations made from audit findings.   It was highlighted that J. Porter, Coordinating 
Manager of Budget and Audit Services and D. Johnston, Regional Internal Audit Manager 
have participated on the Leading Practices Repository Committee. 

Discussion held regarding the pilot that is currently underway with a few boards which, at 
this time is using the information from the HR/Payroll audits that have recently been 
completed.  Committee members commented that access for Audit Committee members and 
Administration would be beneficial from a training and knowledge perspective.   

FUTURE ITEM(S): Nil 
 
Adjournment: 3:18 P.M. 
On Motion: Mogado/Marchese and CARRIED 
 



York Catholic District School Board 
 

 
Report to: Audit Committee 
From:  Administration 

Date:  November 8, 2016 

Re: 2015-16 Year-End Financial Results 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The intent of this report (and attachments) is to present for Committee approval the Audited Consolidated 
Financial Statements for the year ending August 31, 2016 (“2015-16 Financial Statements”) and the 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (“Notes”), as well as, for Committee In-camera 
review, the Auditors’ Report to the Audit Committee. 
 
Notes: Provided for the November 8, 2016 Committee meeting are: 

a) 2015-16 Year-End Financial Report which contains the Final Draft 2015-16 Financial 
Statements, Notes, and detailed financial information for 2015-16.  

b) A PowerPoint presentation providing an overview of the 2015-16 Financial Statements will 
be prepared and presented at the meeting.  A final condensed version of this presentation will 
be provided on the Board’s website. 

c) Auditors’ Report to the Audit Committee with recommendations (separately provided in the 
in-camera agenda). 

 
Following Board approval at the November 8, 2016 Special Board meeting, final bound and signed 
copies of the 2015-16 Financial Statements will be available for distribution and submission to the 
Ministry of Education.  
 
In summary: 

1. The net operating 2015-16 in-year “deficit” is $5,359,807 or 0.93% of the “operating revenue” 
(Ministry compliance deficit of $5,547,681 or 0.96% of operating revenue): 

#/$ %

569,610,922$         577,061,141$         7,450,219$        1.31%

569,562,899$         581,037,226$         11,474,327$      2.01%

1,515,513              1,383,722              (131,791)           -8.70%

(1,467,490)$         (5,359,807)$         (3,892,317)$    265.24%

Registered Charity (24,663)                 (44,935)                 (20,272)             82.20%

Committed Sinking Fund Commitment (683,480)$              (142,939)$              540,541$           -79.09%

Ministry Compliance (Deficit) (2,175,633)$         (5,547,681)$         (3,372,048)$    154.99%

Financial Position Summary

2014-15 2015-16 
Difference

Oher Compliance items:

Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses

Net Operating (Deficit)

Employee Future Benefit (PSAB) Item
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2. The “Operating” fiscal objectives for 2015-16 of no “accumulated deficit” and “compliance” 
with Ministry enveloping have been met. 

3. The “Capital” fiscal objective for 2015-16 of no “unsupported capital deficit” has been met. 

4. With Ministry’s approval (exemption to O. Reg. 193/10 - Restricted Purpose Revenues) to apply 
Proceeds of Disposition (POD) funds towards past Ministry “unsupported” capital, $12 million 
Committed Sinking Fund Interest Earned (Committed S/F) was released within Accumulated 
Surplus - Available for Compliance (AS-AFC).  Offset with in-year deficit of $5,547,681, the 
AS-AFC before Committed Items grew from $9.1 million to $15.7 million.  However, the total 
AS-AFC decreased from $24.5 million to $18.9 million. 

5. Per the November 1, 2016 Preliminary Year End (YE) Report to Accommodation & Business 
Affairs Committee, the resulting AS-AFC before Committed Items of $15,701,703 has been 
allocated as follows: 

a. $10,112,188 for Funding Stability 
b. $581,529 for General School Budgets (GSB) Carry-forward 
c. $5,007,986 for Unfunded Employee Future Benefits (EFB) 

 
BACKGROUND 
With the completion of the 2015-16 audit, the primary purpose of this report is to present to Committee 
the proposed year-end financial results for the year ended August 31, 2016.   
 
This report is intended to provide information that will assist Board members in reviewing (and 
approving) the 2015-16 Financial Statements. It includes information related to regular operating results, 
capital program operating results as well as any year-end and Employee Future Benefit (PSAB) required 
adjustments.  As with prior years, it also provides analysis of the Board’s compliance to Ministry of 
Education’s reporting requirements.  
 
Furthermore, the report provides commentary associated with the future risks and opportunities the 
Board will face in relation to managing its financial affairs due in large part to continued Provincial 
mandates and focus as well as the new provincial bargaining framework. 
 
PROVINCIAL RESTRAINTS AND GRANT ALLOCATION CHANGES 
Provincial fiscal challenges and intensified reporting requirements continue to impact the financial 
management and reporting of financial results for all school boards in Ontario and in particular, this 
board due to specific targeted areas of GSN reductions and redistribution as well as impacts of specific 
collective bargaining terms. 
 
Provincial restraints and grant allocation changes from past years contributed to fiscal challenges that 
have cumulated in the 2015-16 in-year structural deficit.  While some grant reductions affected all 
school boards, others grant changes affected individual school boards differently and in fact, increases 
grants for one board and decreases grants for another.  The chronological list of grant impacts below 
encompasses both: 

• 2011-12 year-end financial statements reflected the initial effects of the Provincial response (as 
part of their deficit reduction restraint measures) to the material fiscal effects triggered by the 
PSAB implementation.  Loss of grants, triggered in 2011-12, include: 

o $1.4 million in Learning Opportunities, and  
o $511,000 in Compensation Restraint Savings and $650,000 in Administration and 

Governance allocation 
 



• 2012-13 year end bore the initial impact from the Provincial transfer of responsibility for 
Employee Future Benefit (EFB) liabilities to school boards as well as other restraint measures.  
Loss of grants, triggered in 2012-13, include: 

o $2.1 million decrease (in 2015-16) in benefits benchmark for all school boards (the grant 
reduction grows annually by $600,000 cumulating to $7 million by 2024),  

o $1.9 million permanent loss in Pupil Foundation allocation for classroom computers and 
Professional Development (recently partial funding re-emerged as Education Program 
Other –EPO grant),  

o Almost $2.5 million in Special Education Equipment (SEA) grant, moving from a board-
based to a pupil-based allocation, and 

o $1.9 million in School Operations allocation due to changes in Supplemental Area factor. 
 

• 2013-14 reflected a fiscal environment with fiscal measures and actions intended to accomplish 
normalizing the impact of the significant Provincial restraint measures from past years.  Loss of 
grants, triggered in 2013-14, include: 

o Approximately $100,000 loss in Pupil Foundation Grant from reduction in per pupil 
funding for the newly defined “High Credit” pupils 
 

• 2014-15 saw new GSN reductions specifically for this Board from the provincial focus on a 
School Board Efficiencies and Modernization (SBEM) strategy in which the Ministry 
“redistributed” grant allocations, affecting each school board differently.  Loss of grants, 
triggered in 2014-15, include: 

o $3 million by 2017-18 in Special Education funding when a new Differentiated Special 
Education Needs amount (DSENA) completely replaces the High Needs Amount (HNA) 
(phase-in over four years) 

o $1 million in School Operations funding due to changes in the “top-up” funding formula 
to encourage school boards to reduce excess capacity 

o An insignificant reduction in Administration and Governance allocation for the Board. 
 

For 2015-16, the provincial focus on the School Board Efficiencies and Modernization (SBEM) strategy 
continued and the Board was impacted by yet another set of grant decreases.  Loss of grants, triggered in 
2015-16, includes: 

o Approximately $1 million by 2017-18 in School Operations allocation due to a decrease 
for the Board in the Supplemental Area Factor used to calculate grants (phase-in over 
three years) 

o Additional $3 million by 2017-18 in School Operations allocation to reflect the 
Ministry’s decision to eliminate the top-up grant (phase in over three years) 

o Small decrease in School Foundation grant due to a change in calculating Principal, vice-
Principal, school administrative support and school office supplies allocation to 
discourage small schools unless justified by distance 

o $200,000 in Declining Enrolment Adjustment Allocation to reduce the adjustment 
amount funded to assist school boards in reducing the impact of declining enrolment for 
the first few years.  The fiscal impact increases the higher the enrolment decrease. 

  



Cumulatively, the above grant decreases amounted to over $14 million by 2015-16, over $17 million by 
2016-17 and over $20 million by 2017-18: 
 
Estimated GSN Reduction Impact 2017-18 2015-16

GENERAL  In Year 
Cumulative 

 In-Year 
Cumulative 

Benefits Benchmark (affects various allocations) (3,300,000)      (2,100,000)      

Pupil Foundation - Classroom computers & Professional 
Development

(1,900,000)      (1,900,000)      

Pupil Foundation - High Credit Impact (100,000)         (100,000)         

Special Education - SEA (2,500,000)      (2,500,000)      

Special Education - DSENA (HNA) (3,000,000)      (1,315,000)      

Learning Opportunities (1,400,000)      (1,400,000)      

Compensation Restraint Savings (new 2012) (511,000)         (511,000)         

Administration and Governance (650,000)         (650,000)         

Declining Enrolment (200,000)         (200,000)         

School Operations - Decrease in Supplementary Area 
Factor

(2,900,000)      (2,260,000)      

School Operations - Elimination of Top-up (4,000,000)      (1,865,000)      

Total Operating Restraint Measures (20,461,000)    (14,801,000)    
 

  
Furthermore, the assessment of the 2015/16-17/18 collective bargaining revealed additional financial 
challenges for 2015-16 and beyond.  These include: 

• A $509,000 year end liability to cover the new Earned Leave Plan (ELP) clause in the Ontario 
English Catholic Teachers Association (OECTA) agreement in which a teacher earns a day off 
paid at the Occasional Teacher rate if the teacher incurs less than the 2014-15 threshold (equal to 
the previous year average less a day) set for 2015-16.  The expected impact of the ELP is a 
reduction in absenteeism, to be demonstrated by a reduction in the year-over-year threshold.  
Since this is a savings measure identified in the OECTA Memorandum of Settlement (MoS), a 
threshold reduction will actually trigger a GSN reduction.  The Board’s 2015-16 threshold 
increased from 2014-15; therefore, there was no GSN reduction for ELP. 

• Increases in absenteeism and therefore, supply costs are also experienced as evidenced by the 
increase in the ELP threshold. 

• Approximately $2 million increase in benefit plan costs for 2015-16 (cumulatively $4 million 
from 2012-13 costs) due to increased benefit plan claims experience. 

 
2015-16 YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
The Board’s 2015-16 Year-End Financial Report (attached) will provide information on the following: 
 

1. Financial Report Summary (with highlights on significant changes and financial results) 
2. Year In Review 
3. Accumulated Surplus/Deficit (Available and Unavailable for Compliance) and Deferred 

Revenues 
4. Analysis of Financial Statements 
5. Revenue Summary  
6. Expenditure by Function and Object Summaries 
7. Reconciliation of Expenditures to Consolidated Financial Statements 
8. Not Permanently Financed – Summary of Projects 
9. Ministry of Education EFIS Financial Statement Forms 

  



AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
The attached 2015-16 Year End Financial Report also provides, for Committee review, the Draft 
2015-16 Consolidated Financial Statements, the Auditor’s Report to Audit Committee (presented in-
camera) as well as supplemental information supporting financial results. 
 
The consolidated financial statements required by the Ministry to be published are: 

• Management Report 
• Independent Auditors’ Report 
• Consolidated Statement of Financial Position    
• Consolidated Statement of Operations     
• Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow     
• Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Debt    
• Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

 
The Ministry requirement under PSAB guidelines, to consolidate school-generated funds (i.e. school 
bank account and school council funds) into the Financial Statements came into effect in 2004-05.  
Since then, ALL school bank account financial activity and ALL school council financial activity 
continue to be included in the Financial Statements.  
 
Auditor’s Report to the Audit Committee 
Grant Thornton LLP, the Board’s external auditors will present to the Audit Committee on November 8, 
2016 in the in-camera agenda. Their report will include a review of audit responsibilities, scope, audit 
opinion and independence, highlights, internal control findings and other matters. The auditors’ Report 
to the Audit Committee – Communication of Audit Results will be provided to the Audit Committee 
with the November 8, 2016 Audit Committee In-camera Agenda. 
 
As in past years, an in-camera portion of the Audit Committee on November 8, 2016 will be scheduled 
to allow for discussion between Trustees and the external auditors without Administration present. This 
will allow an opportunity for Committee members to pursue any areas that may be of concern, including 
audit concerns, Administration cooperation, or other matters included within the “auditors report”. This 
practice is recommended and represents good governance practices. 
 
RISKS & OPPORTUNITIES 
For 2015-16, there were two items of note: 

1. The Ministry mandated that Continuing Education enrolment be processed through ONSIS, the 
enrolment program also used for day school.  For the transition year, 2015-16, the ONSIS 
Continuing Education enrolment data was not uploaded to EFIS, the Ministry’s financial system 
for school boards.  School boards were to enter Continuing Education enrolment manually in 
EFIS for year-end financials.  At this time, the Continuing Education enrolment data in ONSIS is 
still not yet available to reconcile the manual EFIS enrolment data.  An estimated reduction in 
Continuing Education grants is expected and may amount to approximately $160,000.  Any 
resulting adjustment will be treated as a prior year grant adjustment for 2016-17. 
 

2. The Budget in the Board’s 2015-16 Financial Statements reflects the Budget submitted in EFIS 
(Ministry reporting system).   There exists a discrepancy of $483,839 between Budget submitted 
in EFIS and the Board approved budget due to the following: 

• $250,000 Uniform rebate revenue was not recorded in EFIS 

• Additional expenses of $283,839 were included in the EFIS submission in error 
 



 
 
Future Risks and Opportunities: 
With progressing provincial restraint measures and the Ministry’s School Board Efficiencies and 
Modernization (SBEM) strategies along with current provincial Collective Bargaining impacts, the 
Board’s ability to “control” its fiscal environment, at least in the short term, is at risk and materially 
limited.  With the fiscal challenges identified in this report, an in-year deficit of $5.5 million for 2015-16 
and a projected deficit of $5 million for 2016-17 (per the Board’s Estimates), the Board has made a pro-
active decision to complete a Ministry supported Multi-Year Recovery Plan in 2016-17.   
 
The following are items identified in past years that continue to be areas of future focus and/or concern 
for the Board and/or education sector: 
 

1. Labour Impacts: 

• Putting Students First Act-2012, the MoU, past and future bargaining under a framework set 
out in Bill 122 School Boards Collective Bargaining Act, 2013 have and will have 
considerable consequences on school boards.  Interpretations and implementation of potential 
labour terms must continue to be a high focus and priority to ensure fiscal responsibility is 
applied.  Financial impacts need to be monitored and acted on appropriately.  While the 
terms impacted some school boards positively, impacts of provincially ratified Memorandum 
of Settlement have not been favourable for the Board (e.g. Earned Leave Plan alone resulted 
in an increase in annual year end liability approximating $500k and potential annual grant 
decrease approximating $400k). 

• Certain existing Collective Agreement clauses and practices, borne from the Board’s growth 
era, need to be assessed, monitored and managed. 

• 2015-16 sick leave/absence data revealed that this is once again an escalated area of fiscal 
pressure for the Board.  The Board must increase fiscal focus in this area. 

• The Retirement Gratuity EFB liability of $12.3 million remains a significant future liability 
of the Board for which no provision (pre-funding) has been made.  

• The WSIB/Life Waiver EFB liability of $5 million remains an unfunded liability for the 
Board. 
 

2. Technological Changes: 

• With fast-paced changes and increasing demands in the world of 21st Century technological 
advancements, it is imperative to have appropriate IT governance and a sustainable 
(affordable and manageable) IT strategy. 

• Through its SBEM strategy, the Ministry continues to increase its web-based applications to 
obtain board data (enrolment and teacher data via ONSIS, financial data via EFIS, capital 
planning and facilities data via SFIS, etc).  As previously reported, this electronic data 
availability changes the way the Ministry will monitor and fund school boards.  It will be 
prudent for boards to understand the impact of this electronic age.  (Note: the Ministry rolled 
out the EFIS V2.0 for school board financial data, ONSIS to capture Continuing Education 
enrolment data, a new VFA.facility system to capture facility renewal project costs and is 
working on a new SFIS system targeted to go live in 2017).   

• Financial analytics and appropriate reporting are imperative to effectively manage school 
boards. 
 

3. Board Profile changes: 



• Incorporating the effects of Full-Day Kindergarten enrolment, 2015-16 is the first year of 
declining enrolment for the Board.  Projections show that the Board’s enrolment will 
continue to decline.  Therefore, the Board must employ appropriate strategies to manage in a 
declining enrolment environment. 

• With the Ministry’s three-year phase out of the top-up funding for excess capacity, 
effectively reducing GSNs by $4 million by 2017-18, timely Long-Term Accommodation 
Plan strategies such as Accommodation Reviews and school consolidations are necessary 
fiscal measures to reduce excess capacity. 

• The recent updates by the Ministry in census and other statistical data affecting GSN have 
resulted in reallocations of GSN among school boards.  These have negatively impacted the 
Board.  Cumulatively, the following captures significant areas to-date and into the future as 
noted in this report. 
 

4. Capital: 

• The Capital Wrap-up Template (CWT) process resulted in joint efforts from two branches of 
the Ministry (Capital and Finance) in producing a mandated tool, Capital Analysis and 
Planning Template (CAPT), to ensure accountability for large capital investments across 
school boards and to assess the resulting impact on the Board’s Capital surplus/deficit and 
financial position.  Similarly, school boards’ Plant and Finance departments need to work 
collaboratively to maximize the Board’s capital positions.  YCDSB’s inter-departmental 
collaborative efforts continue to have materialized in very positive outcomes in the capital 
area.  These efforts need to be continued and monitored as the provincial CAPT tool and 
Ministry monitoring continues to be expanded. 

• Capital grants (e.g. Temporary Accommodation, School Condition Improvement (SCI), 
Retrofitting Space for Childcares) have a changed focus (e.g. school consolidations, SCI, 
POD, Child Cares, Community Hubs) and will be based on new variables and more 
restrictive criteria for eligibility and determination.  The board needs to be vigilant and 
attentive to these new parameters to maximize outcomes and to resource appropriately. 

• Subsequent to year-end, the Board entered into an offer to purchase agreement for the sale of 
surplus land on October 27, 2016.    The purchase agreement is subject to due diligence 
procedures and is expected to close February 28, 2017 for gross proceeds of $19,690,000 
with net proceeds going into Proceeds of Disposition Deferred Revenue.  This and future 
property sales will need proper planning to maximize outcomes for the Board. 
 

5. Multi-Year Strategic Plan (MYSP): 

• The Board has approved a Multi-Year Strategic Plan (MYSP) which will assist in providing 
guidance over the next few years. 

• With the implementation of the Board’s MYSP, the Board’s budget and various departmental 
goals and initiatives will be aligned with the Board’s strategic plan, school and board 
improvement plans. 
 

  



6. Multi-Year Recovery Plan (MYRP): 

• The Board has approved the engagement of a Ministry supported consultant to assist Senior 
Administration to complete a Multi-Year Recovery Plan (MYRP) to identify strategies to 
bring the Board into balanced budget position. 

• The cooperation of all departments is imperative as the MYRP is being developed. 

• To be successful, the acceptance, implementation and monitoring of the MYRP 
recommendations is imperative. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The following recommendations are presented for Audit Committee approval: 
 

1. THAT the Board approve the 2015-16 Consolidated Financial Statements of the York 
Catholic District School Board as audited by Grant Thornton LLP, Chartered 
Accountants. 

 
2. THAT the Board publish a notice in local newspapers that the 2015-16 Audited 

Consolidated Financial Statements of the York Catholic School Board, together with the 
Auditors’ Report, will be made available, as part of the Board’s regular publications and 
posted on the Board’s website. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared & Submitted by: Anna Chan, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Board 
Endorsed by:    Patricia Preston, Director of Education 
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FINANCIAL REPORT SUMMARY 
 
The draft of the Independent Auditors’ Report, Consolidated Financial Statements (the Statements) and 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (the Notes) and the in-camera Auditors’ Report to the 
Audit Committee are provided to Committee as Attachment 1 & 2 of the 2015-16 Year-End Financial 
Report.   Final bound and signed copies of the 2015-16 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 
that are used for publication purposes will be available for distribution after Board approval at the 
November 8, 2016 Special Board meeting.  
 
Boards are required to publish consolidated financial statements and audit report as follows: 
 

• Management Report 
• Independent Auditors’ Report 
• Consolidated Statement of Financial Position   Schedule 1 (EFIS) 
• Consolidated Statement of Operations    Schedule 1.1 (EFIS) 
• Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow    Schedule 1.2 (EFIS) 
• Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Debt   Schedule 1.3 (EFIS) 
• Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

  
Submissions to the Ministry will be done after the November 8, 2016 Special Board meeting.  Submissions 
will include: 

• An electronic data file (“EFIS”) used to create the Financial Statements and Grants for Student 
Needs  

• Electronic copies (changed from “Hard-copies” in prior years), signed by the Chair and Director of 
Education / Secretary, of the external Consolidated Financial Statements and relevant EFIS 
schedules 

 
HIGHLIGHTS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IMPACTING FISCAL 2015-16 
 
New for 2015-16: 
 

1. There were no significant changes in accounting standards that affected the Board’s Financial 
Statements.   

2. With Ministry’s approval (exemption to O. Reg 193/10 - Restricted Purpose Revenues) to apply 
Proceeds of Disposition (POD) funds towards past Ministry “unsupported” capital, $12 million 
Committed Sinking Fund Interest Earned (Committed S/F) was released within Accumulated 
Surplus - Available for Compliance (AS-AFC). 

 
REVISED ESTIMATES RESTATEMENT 
 
The 2015-16 Revised Estimates has been restated to reflect the funding for salary increases for 
collective agreement increases.  The submission of 2015-16 Revised Estimates included the related 
labour expenses without the corresponding grant increases.   
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These impact Grants for Student Needs (GSN), totaling $7,104,015 as follows: 
 

(1)  OECTA Qualification and Experience (Q&E) grant increase of $2,523,988; 
(2)  1% Lump Sum Payment increase per a Table grant of $4,535,160;  
(3)  ECE Qualification and Experience (Q&E) grant increase of $39,671; and 
(4)  Learning Opportunities Grant (LOG) increase of $5,196 for Literacy and Numeracy Coaches. 

 
The restatements are reflected in the comparatives to actual 2015-16 results where applicable. 
 
MINISTRY STATEMENTS – ITEMS OF NOTE 
 
It should be noted that the Ministry Financial Statements and Grants for Student Needs Calculations entail 
217 pages and sections. The financial statements and grant calculation package includes numerous reports 
both of a financial and statistical nature for financial reporting, grant calculations, envelope compliance, 
accountability and general data collection. The Consolidated Financial Statements to be published are noted 
in the previous section.  
 
Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) Issues and Independent Auditors’ Report  
As presented to the Audit Committee over the past few years, the financial statements have taken on a 
completely new look as a result of the implementation of PSAB reporting guidelines. Under the 
transition to full implementation of PSAB reporting, there were a series of requirements that include the 
consolidation of all funds controlled by the Board i.e. school generated funds and school council 
generated funds. For reporting purposes, ALL school bank account and school council financial 
activities are included.  Improvement has been made in the collection of school council financial 
information and as a result, the Independent Auditor’s Report continues NOT to contain a 
qualification with respect to school-generated funds.   
 
 
Comparability of Financial Results Year-to-Year   
 
The following two charts (one for Consolidated Statements of Financial Position and the other for 
Consolidated Statement of Operations) will show the financial results of 2015-16 versus 2014-15. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
The Board’s Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Administration Act, 
supplemented by Ontario Ministry of Education memorandum 2004:B2 and Ontario Regulation 395/11 of 
the Financial Administration Act.  Details of the basis of accounting are described in Note 1 to the 
Statements. 

There are new notes for 2015-16: 

•  Note #1 j):  Government Transfers note had some prescribed wording changes to reflect the link 
to  Regulation 395/11 for the recording of Deferred Capital Contribution and the subsequent 
revenue recognition. 

• Note #6 b) iv):  A one-time Voluntary Retirement Gratuity Early Pay-out Provision, negotiated 
in the recent labour agreements, was available to all eligible employees.  For the Board, the 
employee future benefit (EFB) decreased by the pay-outs totalling $292,481 (20 employees 
exercised the early pay out option) and the EFB liability experienced an actuarial gain of 
$17,505.  Note that the $17,505 has a minor impact to the EFB in the relate Accumulated Deficit 
– Unavailable for Compliance balance. 

• Note # 6 Benefit Plan Future Changes:  Provincial Employee Life and Health Trusts (ELHTs) 
will be established during 2016-17.  These ELHTs will replace the Board’s current employee 
benefit plans for Life, Health and Dental plans. 

• Note #3 Subsequent to year-end, the Board entered into an offer to purchase agreement for the 
sale of surplus land on October 27, 2016.    The purchase agreement is subject to due diligence 
procedures and is expected to close February 28, 2017 for gross proceeds of $19,690,000. 

 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
As usually reported at this time, supplementary Financial Reports and analyses are included with this 
report to provide additional information as follows: 
 

• Appendix C: Accumulated Surplus/Deficit and Deferred Revenues – Ministry-Required 
summaries provide details for Board established ASD-AFC and Ministry controlled/required 
ASD-UFC and Deferred Reserves.   

• Appendix D: Financial Statement Analysis provides detailed explanations for financial 
statement items 

• Appendix E: 2015-16 Revenue Summary  
• Appendix F - H:  2015-16 Operating Expenditures by Object and by Function  
• Appendix I: Reconciliation of Reported Expenditures to Consolidated Financial 

Statements  
• Appendix J: Not Permanently Financed (NPF) – Summary of Projects  
• Appendix K: Copies of draft Ministry EFIS Compliance Report and statements 
 

Consistent with the analysis presented in prior years, budget material is included on Appendices F to H 
to reflect the new Ministry account groupings. This data excludes Long-Term Debt interest, Pupil 
Accommodation (New Pupil Places/Growth/PTR/Capital Priorities/GPL/Facilities Renewal/Energy 
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Efficient School/Green School Pilot/Temporary Accommodations/ POD) and utilization of AS-AFC in 
order to summarize Operating Expenditures. The Expenditures Analysis by Object has been formatted to 
exclude non-operating expenditures resulting in a summary of Classroom and Non-Classroom costs 
(Appendix F).   A reconciliation of these expenditures to the consolidated Financial Statement 
expenditures is provided in Appendix I.  
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2015-16 FINANCIAL RESULTS 
 
OPERATING (MINISTRY COMPLIANCE) 
 
In summary, the 2015-16 financial results are as follows: 

 In-year compliance deficit  
 Zero cumulative compliance deficit  
 Compliant with Ministry enveloping provisions  

 
Annual Compliance determination: 
Combining the Board’s 2015-16 in-year operating deficit of $5,359,807 together with Registered 
Charity and drawdown of committed surplus for sinking fund interest compliance requirement, the 
Board’s deficit for Ministry compliance purposes is $5,547,681  (refer to Appendix B & C).   
Compared to the 1% (or $5,609,569) of the operating allocation used in the Ministry’s deficit 
compliance calculation, the Board’s 2015-16 financial results is compliant.    
 
The financial objective of “in-year compliance” was achieved.  
 
Zero Cumulative Compliance Deficit determination: 
The Summary of Accumulated Surplus/Deficit and Deferred Revenues - Ministry Required (Appendix 
C) lists the August 31, 2016 balances of Board-established AS-AFC and Ministry mandated ASD-UFC 
and Deferred Revenues followed by explanatory information.  The 2015-16 year ended with Compliance 
Accumulated Surplus balance of $18,949,319 (or $15,701,703 without committed items) and is therefore 
compliant.  
 
The financial objective of “zero cumulative deficit” was achieved.  
 
Enveloping Compliance determination: 
 
The funding model contains the following enveloping provisions: 

• Special Education,  
• Board Administration and Governance (Deferred to 2015-16 due to collective bargaining 

impacts for 2015-16), 
• New:  Student Achievement Envelope within Learning Opportunities Grant (includes six LOG 

allocations – Literacy and Math Outside the school Day, Student Success, grades 7 to 12, Grade 
7 and 8 Literacy and Numeracy and Student Success Teachers, School Effectiveness 
Framework, Ontario Focused Intervention Partnership (OFIP) Tutoring, and Specialist High 
Skills Major (SHSM) allocations. 

 
The Board has complied with the provisions of each “envelope” except for Administration and 
Governance which has been deferred in 2015-16 due to collective bargaining impacts.  It should be 
noted that in the past up to 2014-15, the Administration & Governance envelope was allowed a 
threshold of 15%.  It becomes imperative that any Board Administration “overspending” be addressed 
for 2016-17. 
 
The financial objective of “Compliant with Ministry enveloping provisions” was achieved.  
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FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE TO THE PUBLIC 
 
Subsection 252(2) of the Education Act requires that prescribed financial data of a Board be made 
available to its ratepayers or supporters. It is proposed that, similar to past years, the 2015-16 Statements 
be posted on the Board’s website.
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2015-16:  YEAR IN REVIEW 
 
Per the Board’s Financial Statements, the 2015-16 Board annual surplus for 2015-16 is $4,815,633 and the 
annual surplus for 2014-15 was $7,650,934.  This annual financial position presented in the Board’s 
financial statements does not represent the Board’s “financial health” as measured by the Ministry.   
 
The following key elements will be used to present the financial health of the Board to August 31, 2016: 

1. Enrolment  
2. Annual Board operating financial results 
3. Annual/Cumulative compliance financial position 
4. Annual/Cumulative total financial position 
5. Capital position 

Enrolment: 
 
In that over 95% of the Board’s operating revenue is generated by Provincial legislative grants and that most 
of the Grants for Student Needs (GSN) are enrolment-based grants, the Board’s enrolment trends is the 
largest indicator for the Board’s revenue generation. 
 
After decades of phenomenal growth, enrolment decreases began in 2012-13 if the effects of Full Day 
Kindergarten (FDK) implementation are not incorporated as shown in the chart below: 
 

 
 
Note that FDK was implemented over five years beginning 2010-11.   
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When effects of FDK implementation are incorporated in the change in enrolment chart, 2015-16 becomes 
the first year of enrolment decline: 
 

 
 
 
Annual Board Operating Financial Results: 
 
In summary, the Board’s 2015-16 compliance position netted an operating deficit of $5,359,807 (or a 
compliant deficit of $5,547,681 after committed amounts).  The 2015-16 Revised Estimates submitted 
and filed with the Ministry of Education, after adjustment of $7,104,015 for Collective Agreement 
related GSN increase (see note in Appendix A on restatement), projected a small in-year operating 
surplus of $326,979 (or a small deficit of $356,501 after committed amounts).   
 
Note:  whereas in past years, the compliance position is complicated by Ministry rules around Other 
Employee Future Benefit (EFB) liabilities (i.e. WSIB & LTD Waiver), the Board’s 2015-16 PSAB EFB 
reconciling item will now be limited only to the amortization of the unamortized/unfunded  Retirement 
Gratuity EFB amount in the Board’s Accumulated Deficit - Unavailable for Compliance section.   
 
The following chart illustrates the 2015-16 audited summary of the actual compliance results in 
comparison to the adjusted revised estimates filed with the Ministry of Education and the resulting 
variances: 
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#/$ %

Grants for Student Needs (GSN) 553,393,432$   7,104,015$         560,497,447$      559,712,551$      (784,896)$        -0.14%
Other Grants -                    -                       164,337                 164,337             
Other Revenue 8,381,613           8,381,613              9,749,440              1,367,827           16.32%
Continuing Education Other 7,034,301           7,034,301              7,434,813              400,512             5.69%

568,809,346$   7,104,015$         575,913,361$      577,061,141$      1,147,780$       0.20%

Operating Expenses   573,370,166$   573,370,166$      581,037,226$      7,667,060$       1.34%
Employee Future Benefit (PSAB) Item 2,216,216           2,216,216              1,383,722              (832,494)          -37.56%

575,586,382$   -$                    575,586,382$      582,420,948$      6,834,566$       1.19%

(6,777,036)$     7,104,015$         326,979$             (5,359,807)$         (5,686,786)$     -1739.19%

Other Compliance Items
Registered Charity -$                 -$                     (44,935)$              (44,935)$          #DIV/0!
Committed Sinking Fund Commitment (683,480)$        (683,480)$            (142,939)$            540,541$          -79.09%

MINISTRY COMPLIANCE POSITION (7,460,516)$     7,104,015$         (356,501)$            (5,547,681)$         (5,191,180)$     1456.15%

(1)  Adjustment is for the additional grants related to central Collective Agreement terms (Grid movements and 1% Lump sum payments)

NET OPERATING SURPLUS / 
(DEFICIT)

OPERATING REVENUE (Excluding 
Capital/PSAB/YE)

Operating Revenue (Excluding 
Capital/PSAB/YE)

Operating Expenses & EFB/PSAB Items

2015-16 Annual Compliance Operating Results
 

Revenue 
Revised 

Estimates

Adjustments 
Labour CA 

Increases (1)

2015-16 Adjusted 
Revenue Revised 

Estimates

2015-16              
Actuals

Difference

OPERATING EXPENSES & EFB/PSAB 
ITEMS
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Annual/Cumulative Compliance Financial Position: 
For Ministry “compliance purposes”, the in-year deficit is $5,547,681.  As illustrated below, the Board’s 
compliance financial position takes into account two committed items:  (1) Normal change resulting 
from Registered Charity consolidation of ($44,935); and (2) the amortization of Committed Sinking 
Fund interest earned (Committed S/F) balance of $142,939).  Note that prior to 2015-16, the normal 
annual amortization amount for the Committed S/F) was $683,480.   
 
New for 2015-16:  With Ministry’s approval (exemption to O. Reg 193/10 - Restricted Purpose 
Revenues) to apply Proceeds of Disposition (POD) funds towards past Ministry “unsupported” capital 
(formerly supported by the Committed S/F), $12 million Committed S/F was released within 
Accumulated Surplus - Available for Compliance (AS-AFC).  The impact is an increase to the 
designated “Funding Stability” amount as shown in the chart below and a decrease in the annual 
amortization of the Committed S/F balance as noted above. 
 
The Board’s cumulative available for compliance surplus position, decreased by the in-year compliance 
deficit of $5,547,681, is now $18,949,319 (2015 - $24,497,000). 
 
The details for various components of the ASD-AFC illustrated below are provided in Appendix C. 

 2014-15 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit) 
Opening 

 Release of SF 
Commitment) 

 2014-15 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit) After 

SF 
Commitment 

Release 

 Total In- Year 
Increase / 
(Decrease)  

 2015-16 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit)  

 Board Established:  - Available for Compliance 
("ASD-AFC") Unappropriated 

 In Year 
(Utilization)  

 In Year 
Increase or 
(Decrease) 

Technology Infrastructure 75,972               75,972                (74,887)         (1,085)           (75,972)           -                   
21st Century Learning 94                       94                        (94)                 (94)                   -                   
Strategic Planning 400,719             400,719              (343,198)       (57,521)         (400,719)         -                   

 Funding Stability 2,457,712         12,000,000     14,457,712        (4,345,524)   (4,345,524)      10,112,188     

Board Established:  Total Unappropriated 2,934,497         12,000,000     14,934,497        (418,085)       (4,404,224)   (4,822,309)      10,112,188     

 Board Established:  AS-AFC Appropriated 

General School Budgets (GSB Carryforward) 1,119,027         1,119,027          (537,498)       (537,498)         581,529          

 Unfunded Employee Future Benefits: -                     -                      
    Claims Fluctuation -WSIB & LTD Waiver (2) 5,007,986         5,007,986          -                   5,007,986       

-                     -                      
Board Established:  Total Appropriated 6,127,013         -                    6,127,013          (537,498)       -                 (537,498)         5,589,515       

 Total Board Established:  ASD-AFC Before 
Committed Items 9,061,510         12,000,000     21,061,510        (955,583)       (4,404,224)   (5,359,807)      15,701,703     

 Registered Charity 262,241             262,241              (44,935)         (44,935)           217,306          

 Total Board Established & Registered Charity:  
ASD-AFC Before Committed S/F 9,323,751         12,000,000     21,323,751        (1,000,518)   (4,404,224)   (5,404,742)      15,919,009     

 Committed Sinking Fund interest earned 15,173,249       (12,000,000)    3,173,249          (142,939)       (142,939)         3,030,310       

 Total Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) - Available 
for Compliance 24,497,000       -                    24,497,000        (1,143,457)   (4,404,224)   (5,547,681)      18,949,319     

Accumulated Surplus / Deficit 2015-16

 In-Year 
Increase/Decrease Details 

 
 
  

Ministry Compliance 
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The following charts will illustrate the Board’s history of Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) positions: 
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* A “Low Risk” board must have 2% of Operating Income as Accumulated Surplus.  
 
Annual/Cumulative Total Financial Position: 
 
For the Board’s external financial statements, the impact of the PSAB implementations generated a 
category of Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) – Unavailable for Compliance (ASD-UFC) cumulating to  
$198,159,730 as at August 31, 2016, increased by $10,363,314 during 2015-16.  As noted in prior years’ 
reports, the 2012-13 Provincial restraint measures included the transfer of EFB liability responsibility to 
school boards resulting in significant utilization of the Board’s annual surplus for all future years.  
 
For 2015-16: 

1. Assumption of the amortization of the Retirement Gratuity EFB over EARSL accounted for 
approximately $1.4 million.  $12.3 million remains unamortized and will be amortized into the 
Board’s compliance position over next nine years. 
 

2. Any Retiree Benefit EFB expense is now incorporated into Operating. In a pro-active effort to 
eliminate future fiscal impacts, this EFB liability was assumed in the 2012-13 financial year end 
due to its relatively small size, which was further endorsed by the 2013-14 settlement of the 
OECTA Retiree Benefits grievance. 

 

Minimum for Low Risk* 
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3. Full assumption of the in-year change in other EFB liabilities (WSIB and LTD Waivers) 
occurred in 2015-16.  For the first time, the in-year change is now incorporated into normal 
operating results.  The unknown, and therefore the board’s risk, is:  when will the Ministry 
address Accumulated Deficit – Unavailable for Compliance (AD-UFC) balance?  To offset this 
risk, an equal amount has been “appropriated” from the Board’s Accumulated Surplus- AFC. 

 
4. Since the in-year change in Compensated Absences (Sick Leave top-up from the 2012 MoU) 

EFB liability is also a Board responsibility, the in-year change is now incorporated into the 
Board’s operating results.   

 
The significant fiscal impacts of the PSAB implementation became a major target for the Provincial 
restraint measures.  The reduction in Employee Future Benefit plan curtailments for the Board amounted 
to $71.8 million in 2011-12.  2012-13 through 2014-15 witnessed the fiscal responsibility transfers for 
such EFB liabilities to school boards. 2015-16 was the first year in which all in-year changes in EFB 
liabilities have become the responsibility of the Board.  Therefore, all EFB in-year changes have now 
been incorporated as part of operating results.  Two EFB PSAB items remain outstanding: 

1. The Retirement Gratuity EFB amortization over EARSL (2015-16 & beyond $1,383,722 per 
year for next nine years) creates a transfer of fiscal responsibility from Unavailable for 
Compliance to Available for Compliance. 

2. The Other EFB (WSIB and LTD Waivers) liability of $5 million in Unavailable for Compliance 
remains outstanding.  Assumption of this liability by school boards remains a risk for the Board. 
 

Other items in the ASD-UFC include the normal debenture interest accrual, the school generated funds 
balances, revenue recognized for land net of any not permanently financed or funded amounts.   
 
The Board’s overall total Accumulated Surplus/Deficit position for 2015-16 is presented as follows: 

 2014-15 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit) 
Opening 

 Release of SF 
Commitment) 

 2014-15 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit) After 

SF 
Commitment 

Release 

 Total In- Year 
Increase / 
(Decrease) 

(Note 1)  

 2015-16 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit)  

 Total Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) - Available 
for Compliance 24,497,000       -                    24,497,000        (1,143,457)   (4,404,224)   (5,547,681)      18,949,319     

 Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) - Unavailable for 
Compliance ("ASD-UFC") 

 Employee Future Benefits: 
   Retirement Gratuities (3) (13,662,171)      (13,662,171)       1,366,217     17,505          1,383,722       (12,278,449)   
   Other Benefits (WSIB & LTD Waivers) (2) (5,007,986)        (5,007,986)         -                   (5,007,986)      

-                   
 Debenture Interest Accrual (4,282,859)        (4,282,859)         154,455        154,455          (4,128,404)      
 School Generated Funds 7,467,399         7,467,399          367,126        367,126          7,834,525       
 Revenues Recognized for Land 205,320,843     205,320,843      6,419,201     6,419,201       211,740,044  
 NPF - EDC (2,038,810)        (2,038,810)         2,038,810     2,038,810       -                   

 Total Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) - 
Unavailable for Compliance 187,796,416     -                    187,796,416      10,345,809  17,505          10,363,314     198,159,730  

 Total Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit)  212,293,416     -                    212,293,416      9,202,352     (4,386,719)   4,815,633       217,109,049  

Accumulated Surplus / Deficit 2015-16

 In-Year 
Increase/Decrease Details 
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Capital Position 
 
Ministry of Education capital funding focus has transitioned from an era centred on adding new pupil 
places and schools to one that primarily addresses school consolidations or right-sizing, school renewal 
and seamless integration with Early Years programs.  Through the Ministry’s School Board Efficiency 
& Modernization (SBEM) initiatives, school boards have lost much of its capital autonomy and must 
increase its efforts to meet the tracking, reporting and approval requirements from the Ministry.  Despite 
this, a rigorous fully-funded capital program, more focused on renewal than building, was delivered 
during the year. 
 
2014-15 saw the end in capital spending under the old capital funding model (NPP/Growth/PTR) and 
2015-16 saw the last Ontario Financing Authority (OFA) loan being executed.  Since the days of the 
1998 New Pupil Places (NPP) Capital funding model, the Board has had an extremely fully-funded, 
active and successful capital program with expenditures in three major categories: 
 

1. Capital construction projects spending amounted in excess of $539 million since year 2000.  
These projects added both permanent and temporary pupil places capacity for the Board to 
accommodate students during the Board’s growth period.  The NPP program brought in excess 
of $402 million, the Early Learning Program which targets the accommodation needs of the Full-
Day Kindergarten initiative brought in excess of $29 million and the other capital programs 
(Growth, Prohibitive to Repair, and Capital Priorities) supported in excess of $107 million.   
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2. The Facilities Renewal programs totaled in excess of $181million since year 2000.  These 
programs covered both major and minor renewal spending.  In recent years, new programs 
targeted at facilities renewal spending as well as temporary accommodation needs have been 
introduced.  These programs include Temporary Accommodation (Temp Accom), School 
Condition Improvement (SCI), Energy, the older Good Places to Learn (GPL), School Renewal 
Allocation (SRA, formerly FRP), and the new Childcare Retrofit allocations.   
 
In June 2016, the Ministry announced significant additional investments to improve school 
buildings for both 2015-16 and 2016-17.  SRA increased by $880,906 (2016-17 - $891,519) and 
SCI was increased by $6,501,392 (2016-17 - $7,561,401). 
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3. Site expenditures amounted to approximately $147 million since year 2000.  The majority of the 

Board’s site purchases or expenditures are funded through Education Development Charges 
(EDC) levied through municipalities against new residential and non-residential owners.  As 
shown below for 2015-16, the Board received Capital Priorities-Land funding for the first time to 
fund the portion of land purchases not eligible for EDC.  One was retroactively applied for 
St. Joseph, Markham replacement site and the other is for the new Our Lady of Good Counsel 
replacement site purchased in 2015-16: 
 

 
 

Sale of Properties 
 
During the year, Cornell #1 was sold with proceeds of $10,505,795.  The carrying value of 
$2,270,318 was repatriated into EDC reserves creating a recovery of revenue.  The resulting gain 
of $8,235,477 was deferred into POD reserves in accordance with O. Reg. 193/10. 
 
Subsequent Event 
 
Subsequent to August 31, 2016, the Board entered into an Offer to Purchase agreement for the 
sale of surplus land.  The purchase agreement, entered into on October 27, 2016, is subject to due 
diligence procedures and is expected to close February 28, 2017 for gross proceeds of 
$19,690,000. 
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ACCUMULATED SURPLUS/DEFICT 
 
As detailed below, the 2015-16 Accumulated Surplus of $217,109,049 is comprised of $18,949,319 in 
Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) – Available for Compliance (ASD-AFC) and $198,159,730 Accumulated 
Surplus/(Deficit) – Unavailable for Compliance (ASD-UFC): 
 

 2014-15 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit) 
Opening 

 Release of SF 
Commitment) 

 2014-15 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit) After 

SF 
Commitment 

Release 

 Total In- Year 
Increase / 
(Decrease) 

(Note 1)  

 2015-16 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit)  

 Board Established:  - Available for Compliance 
("ASD-AFC") Unappropriated 

 In Year 
(Utilization)  

 In Year 
Increase or 
(Decrease) 

Technology Infrastructure 75,972               75,972                (74,887)         (1,085)           (75,972)           -                   
21st Century Learning 94                       94                        (94)                 (94)                   -                   
Strategic Planning 400,719             400,719              (343,198)       (57,521)         (400,719)         -                   

 Funding Stability 2,457,712         12,000,000     14,457,712        (4,345,524)   (4,345,524)      10,112,188     

Board Established:  Total Unappropriated 2,934,497         12,000,000     14,934,497        (418,085)       (4,404,224)   (4,822,309)      10,112,188     

 Board Established:  AS-AFC Appropriated 

General School Budgets (GSB Carryforward) 1,119,027         1,119,027          (537,498)       (537,498)         581,529          

 Unfunded Employee Future Benefits: -                     -                      
    Claims Fluctuation -WSIB & LTD Waiver (2) 5,007,986         5,007,986          -                   5,007,986       

-                     -                      
Board Established:  Total Appropriated 6,127,013         -                    6,127,013          (537,498)       -                 (537,498)         5,589,515       

 Total Board Established:  ASD-AFC Before 
Committed Items 9,061,510         12,000,000     21,061,510        (955,583)       (4,404,224)   (5,359,807)      15,701,703     

 Registered Charity 262,241             262,241              (44,935)         (44,935)           217,306          

 Total Board Established & Registered Charity:  
ASD-AFC Before Committed S/F 9,323,751         12,000,000     21,323,751        (1,000,518)   (4,404,224)   (5,404,742)      15,919,009     

 Committed Sinking Fund interest earned 15,173,249       (12,000,000)    3,173,249          (142,939)       (142,939)         3,030,310       

 Total Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) - Available 
for Compliance 24,497,000       -                    24,497,000        (1,143,457)   (4,404,224)   (5,547,681)      18,949,319     

 Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) - Unavailable for 
Compliance ("ASD-UFC") 

 Employee Future Benefits: 
   Retirement Gratuities (3) (13,662,171)      (13,662,171)       1,366,217     17,505          1,383,722       (12,278,449)   
   Other Benefits (WSIB & LTD Waivers) (2) (5,007,986)        (5,007,986)         -                   (5,007,986)      

-                   
 Debenture Interest Accrual (4,282,859)        (4,282,859)         154,455        154,455          (4,128,404)      
 School Generated Funds 7,467,399         7,467,399          367,126        367,126          7,834,525       
 Revenues Recognized for Land 205,320,843     205,320,843      6,419,201     6,419,201       211,740,044  
 NPF - EDC (2,038,810)        (2,038,810)         2,038,810     2,038,810       -                   

 Total Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) - 
Unavailable for Compliance 187,796,416     -                    187,796,416      10,345,809  17,505          10,363,314     198,159,730  

 Total Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit)  212,293,416     -                    212,293,416      9,202,352     (4,386,719)   4,815,633       217,109,049  

Accumulated Surplus / Deficit 2015-16

 In-Year 
Increase/Decrease Details 

Board 
Operating 
Focus

Mandatory 
Committed 
Funds

Ministy 
Compliance

Future Board 
responsibility 
over EARSL

Potential 
Future Board 
responsibility
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The Ministry required Deferred Reserves, presented in Note #4 to the Financial Statements, are 
illustrated below.  The remaining balances represent revenues received that have been set aside for 
specific purposes by legislation, regulation or agreement, i.e. by external restrictions. 

 

Revenue 
recognized in the 

period

 Special Education (inc. SEA)                   521,335 70,978,322             (70,855,091)            644,566                  
 Internal Audit                2,247,406 1,122,780               (943,024)                 2,427,162               
 Mental Health Leader                              -   119,832                   (119,832)                 -                           
 Student Achievement                              -   2,922,009               (2,922,009)              -                           
 Energy Efficient Schools - Op'g                   270,531 150,000                   (317,294)                 103,237                  
 EPO Grants                     14,056 3,212,427               (3,169,161)              57,322                    
 Banker Board Equity                              -   125,000                   (125,000)                 -                           
 Ministry of Training Colleges & 
University 

160,446                   (160,446)                 -                           

 Other Prov'l Grants (MCI & Other)                   268,339 220,000                   (348,197)                 140,142                  
 Third Party                     70,555 44,475                     (100,219)                 14,811                    
 Non-Ministry  2,283,081               (2,029,059)              254,022                  
 YCDSB Programs 811,390                   (732,523)                 78,867                    
 Minor Tangible Capital Asset                              -   14,000,176             (12,820,677)            (1,179,499)              -                           
 School Renewal                4,885,123 7,151,705               (1,754,196)              (2,788,891)              7,493,741               
 Interest on Capital                              -   20,093,609             (20,093,609)            -                           
 Temporary Accommodation                              -   1,160,000               (949,832)                 (124,903)                 85,265                    
 School Condition Improvement                 1,126,908 (1,126,908)              -                           
 Retrofitting for Childcare                3,322,854 -                           (100,441)                 3,222,413               
 Proceeds of Disposition                6,854,335 8,235,477               (14,953,997)            135,815                  
 Education Development Charges                              -   10,580,547             (4,482,033)              6,098,514               

TOTAL 19,581,442            143,371,276           (121,922,202)          (20,274,639)            20,755,877            

Deferred Revenue - Ministry Required
2015-16

Balance as at 
August 31, 2015

Balance as at 
August 31, 2016

Transfers to 
deferred capital 

contributions (DCC)

Externally 
restricted revenue 

and investment 
income

 
Notes: 
 
“Special Education (including SEA)” balance of $644,566 reflects the deferred revenue associated with 
Special Education Equipment (SEA) Per Pupil Amount for which the reporting or claim cycle (May to 
April) differs from the Board’s fiscal cycle (September to August).  The balance is not part of the 
normal Special Education enveloping calculation. 
 
“Internal Audit” balance of $2,427,162 reflects GSN funding received by the Board in support of its 
Host Board duties associated with the Toronto Area Regional Internal Audit (RIAT) initiative.  
 
 “School Renewal” balance of $7,493,741 and “School Condition Improvement” (SCI) balance of 
$3,222,413 reflects unused “deferred” funding that will be carried forward to be allocated in 2016-17. 
 
“Education Development Charges” (EDC) deferred revenue of $6,098,514 reflects EDC collections in 
excess of EDC land purchases as at August 31, 2016.   
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Notes to Accumulated Surplus-Available for Compliance  
(ASD-AFC) 

 
NON-DESIGNATED  
 
Non-Designated amounts $ 0 
Non-designated AS –AFC (formerly non-protected reserves) was depleted in prior years.   
 
DESIGNATED 
 
Funding Stability $10,112,188 
This designated amount is a provision set aside to provide a level of reserve against projected future 
deficits.  This “reserve” is necessitated by anticipated future negative expenditure variances and 
projected decreases in future Ministry of Education funding allocation for the Board.  During 2015-16, 
the Ministry approved (exemption to O. Reg 193/10 - Restricted Purpose Revenues) the application of 
Proceeds of Disposition (POD) funds towards past Ministry “unsupported” capital (formerly supported 
by the Committed S/F).  As a result, $12 million Committed Sinking Fund Interest Earned (Committed 
S/F) was released within Accumulated Surplus- Available for Compliance (AS-AFC).  The impact was 
an increase to the designated “Funding Stability” amount and a decrease in the Committed S/F balance.  
Due to the 2015-16 in-year deficit, $4,345,524 of the Funding Stability amount was utilized. 
 
General School Budgets $ 581,529 
As per Board motions the GSB reserve is established at the amount that has not been spent in the current 
year, amounting to $ 581,529 as at August 31, 2016. (2015 - $1,119,027) 
 
Claims Fluctuation-WSIB & LTD Waiver $ 5,007,986 
The amount has been appropriated to offset the respective Employee Future Benefit (EFB) liability (in 
UFC).   
 
Retirement Gratuities EFB $ 0 
$0 has been appropriated (or reserved) for the unfunded EFB liability of $12,278,449 (in UFC).  Per 
Ministry mandate, this liability will be amortized into AFC over EARSL (nine years of amortization 
remain) at an annual rate of $1,383,722 (2015 was $1,366,217 – small change was due to impact of the 
Retirement Gratuities Early Payout option available in 2015-16). 
 
Retiree Benefits EFB $ 0 
$0 has been nor need to be appropriated (or reserved) for the EFB liability.  Due to the successful settlement 
of the Retiree Benefit grievance, this EFB liability has been minimized and therefore, accrued within normal 
operations since 2012-13. 
 
Registered Charity $ 217,306 
The Registered Charity ASD-AFC is the balance left in the charity account to be used for future 
year expenses.  The Registered Charity ASD-AFC is only presented for year-end purposes and not 
included in the operating financial result considerations. 
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Committed Sinking Fund Interest Earned $ 3,030,310 
The Committed Sinking Fund interest earned is the unamortized 2010 Capital Wrap-up (CWT) 
determined amount of sinking fund interest ($18,590,649) that was required to finance sinking fund 
debenture maturities.  This entire amount was mandatorily set aside (i.e. committed) in 2010-11 within 
the Board’s ASD-AFC to meet this obligation and is amortized over 27.2 years to offset the amortization 
of “Unsupported Capital” related to these sinking fund debentures.  This balance was not available for 
Board use and up until 2015, the balance was amortized annually at $683,480 to offset “unfunded” 
amortization expense.  However, during 2015-16, the Ministry approved (exemption to O. Reg 193/10 - 
Restricted Purpose Revenues) the application of Proceeds of Disposition (POD) funds towards past 
Ministry “unsupported” capital (formerly supported by the Committed S/F).  As a result, $12 million 
Committed Sinking Fund Interest Earned (Committed S/F) was released within Accumulated Surplus- 
Available for Compliance (AS-AFC).  The impact was a decrease to the Committed S/F balance as well 
as a decrease to the annual draw to $142,939. 
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Notes to Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit)-Unavailable for 
Compliance (ASD – UFC) 

 
For the Board’s external financial statements, the impact of the PSAB implementations generated a 
category of Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) – Unavailable for Compliance (ASD-UFC) cumulating to  
$198,159,730 as at August 31, 2016 with in-year increase of $10,363,314.   
 
 
Employee Future Benefits ($17,286,435) 
The 2012-13 Provincial restraint measures included the transfer of EFB liability responsibility to school 
boards resulting in significant utilization of the Board’s in-year surplus: 
 

1. Amortization of the Retirement Gratuity EFB over EARSL accounted for approximately $1.4 
million, leaving an unamortized amount of $12,278,449. 
 

2. The other EFB liabilities (WSIB and LTD Waivers) represent the balance that has not yet been 
transferred into the Board’s compliance position.  The amount remaining in UFC is $5,007,986.   
 

Debenture Interest Accrual ($4,128,404) 
The debenture Interest Accrual deficit represents a fully funded timing difference between when 
debenture interest is paid and the August 31st year end. 
 
School Generated Funds $7,834,525 
The balance of School Generated Funds at each year end is recognized as part of the Accumulated 
Surplus-UFC. 
 
Non-Depreciable TCA (Land)  $211,740,044 
Capital transfers relating to non-depreciable assets (land) is recognized as revenue once the asset is 
acquired and therefore, regulations were updated to include revenues received for land in Accumulated 
Surplus – UFC. 
 
Not Permanently Financed (NPF) – Non-Depreciable Assets (EDC)  $0 
With the adoption of PS3410 Government Transfers, the only remaining NPF (ASD-UFC) amount 
relates to unfunded EDC supported land costs. (Appendix I provides a detailed analysis of all NPF 
amounts).  With the 2015-16 EDC collections, the EDC deficit was eliminated (see Deferred 
Revenues).
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (EFIS Schedule 1.0) 
 
FINANCIAL ASSETS      Aug 31, 2016  Aug 31, 2015 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  $ 41,232,217 $ 40,288,262 
Temporary Borrowing 0 0 
 
The change to the positive cash position was less than $1 million. 

 
Accounts Receivable $ 25,279,152 $ 24,453,205 

 
Accounts Receivable includes amounts due from the Province (operating), Municipalities (taxation) and 
other miscellaneous amounts (community use etc.) as at August 31, 2016. 
 
Accounts Receivable-Govt. of Ontario-approved Capital $ 384,323,861 $ 388,698,761 
 
This receivable from the Government is the outstanding/unpaid capital grants to-date that is supported 
by the existing capital programs. Note #2 to the Financial Statements provides more details. 
 
Assets Held for Sale $ 86,900 $0 
 
The Assets Held for Sale is for the old St Joseph, Markham site.  Subsequent to year-end, the Board 
entered into on offer to purchase agreement for the sale of this surplus land on October 27, 2016.  The 
purchase agreement is subject to due diligence procedures and is expected to close February 28, 2017 
for gross proceeds of $19,690,000. 
 
Other $ 1,136,309 $ 719,744 

Other assets include accrued miscellaneous revenues and grants that are recognized in 2015-16, but are 
collected in the subsequent year (2016-17).   
 
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $ 40,879,117 $ 41,784,021 

This amount includes trade accounts payables, payroll accruals, payroll deduction accounts and other 
year-end accruals as at August 31, 2016. The decrease in 2015-16 from 2014-15 is less than $1 million. 
 
Deferred Revenue $ 20,755,877 $ 19,581,442 
 
Deferred revenues of $20,755,877 consist of Operating and Capital Deferred Revenues.   While 
Operating Deferred Revenues remain relatively the same, Capital Deferred Revenues had four 
significant changes: (1) School Renewal change of $2,608,618 due to a mid-year increase in renewal 
grants;  (2)  School Condition Improvement (SCI) decrease to $0 from $1,126,908 since funding for SCI 
has changed to post-spend;  (3)  POD decreased by ($6,718,520) due to the Ministry-approved $12 
million application of POD towards prior year unsupported capital; and (4)  with elimination of the EDC 
Deficit, the residual EDC collections created an EDC Deferred Revenue balance of $6,098,514. 
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 Aug 31, 2016 Aug 31, 2015 

 
Deferred Revenue – Other $ 5,866,974 $ 5,012,507 
 
Deferred Revenue – Other includes tuition fees received for the 2015-16 school year and miscellaneous 
deferred revenues which will be applied in 2016-17. 
 
Deferred Capital Contributions (DCC) $ 690,420,022 $ 679,815,316 
 
Under the newly adopted PSAB standard 3410 on Government Transfers, DCC amounts represent 
government transfers for capital that meet the definition of a liability.  Amounts are recognized into 
revenue as the liability is amortized over the useful life of the asset.  The significant increase in DCC is 
primarily due to Ministry’s approval of the application of $12 million of POD against prior year 
unsupported capital which creates $12 million in DCC. 
 
Employee Benefits Payable $ 18,491,870 $ 19,692,533 
 
As reported previously to the Board, the value of Employee Future Benefits liability must be included in 
the financial statements, according to PSAB reporting requirements. This amount is comprised of the 
following:  

2016 2015  Increase 

Retirement Gratuities 13,484,645$   14,716,572$      (1,231,927)      

Retiree Benefits Premiums 323,086           585,861              (262,775)         

Compensated Absences 345,035           350,442              (5,407)              

Disability Waiver 440,347           357,241              83,106             

14,593,113$   16,010,116$      (1,417,003)      
WSIB 3,898,757        3,682,417           216,340           

TOTAL 18,491,870$   19,692,533$      (1,200,663)      

FUTURE EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

2015-16

   
 
These amounts have been actuarially determined, and appear as liabilities on the Consolidated Statement 
of Financial Position.  
 
 
 
 
 



  2015-16 Audited Financial Statements 
 
  Appendix D 

Page 26 of 47 

 Aug 31, 2016 Aug 31, 2015 
 
 
Net Debt, Capital Loans and Leases $ 363,639,003 $ 376,290,143 

 
This item includes all outstanding debenture debt payable by the Board over the term of the debentures. 
To-date, the entire outstanding amount is fully supported by the Ministry. Note #7 to the Financial 
Statements provides further details on debenture debt.  In 2015-16, the final OFA debenture of 
$7,442,915 (B/L #207) was issued for residual capital project amounts. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS (EFIS Schedule 1.1) 
 
The Consolidated Statement of Operations reflects three columns of data: 
• 2015-16 Budget (Col. 1) 

The Budget in the Board’s 2015-16 Financial Statements reflects the Budget submitted in EFIS 
(Ministry reporting system).   There exists a discrepancy of $483,839 between Budget submitted 
in EFIS and the Board approved budget due to the following: 

• $250,000 Uniform rebate revenue was not recorded in EFIS 

• Additional expenses of $283,839 was included in the EFIS submission to account for LTAP 
expenses due to an expectation of additional grants 

 
• 2015-16 Actual (Col 2) 

Reflects the actual financial operating results prepared in accordance with financial provision 
described in Note 1 to the Financial Statements. 
 

• 2014-15 Actual  (Col 3) 
Reflects previous year 2014-15 actual financial results.   

 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Schedule 1.2) 
The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the Board reflects the net increase or decrease in the 
balances (Sources or Uses of funds), to arrive at an overall CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS amount.  
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT (Schedule 1.3) 
The Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Debt for the Board reflects the activities that impact the Net 
Debt position of the Board. 
 
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (Schedule 5) 
This schedule provides details of the Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) as per Appendix C.  The Summary of 
Accumulated Surplus/Deficit (Appendix C) lists the August 31, 2016 balances of Board established ASD-
AFC and Ministry mandated ASD-UFC. 
 
REVENUES (Schedule 9) 
Of note for 2015-16 Revenues is the inclusion of DCC Revenue of $29,783,454, EDC revenues of 
$4,482,033 which is comprised of EDC collections net of the repatriation of EDC funds of $1,992,146 for 
St Joseph, Markham, and reduction of revenues of ($2,270,318) for EDC revenue recovery for the sale of 
Cornell #1.    
 
EXPENSES (Schedule 10) 
ADJUSTMENTS FOR COMPLIANCE PURPOSES (Schedule 10ADJ) 
These schedules detail all operating, as well as all PSAB required entries, expenses for the Board for the 
year ending August 31, 2016 and reflect the adoption of PSAB 3410 on Government Transfers.
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 #/$ %

OPERATING REVENUE
Grants for Student Needs (GSN) 553,393,432$      7,104,015$          560,497,447$      559,712,551$       (784,896)$             -0.14%

Other Grants -                       -                       164,337                164,337                 
Other Revenue 8,381,613            8,381,613            9,749,440             1,367,827              16.32%
Continuing Education Other 7,034,301            7,034,301            7,434,813             400,512                 5.69%

15,415,914$        -$                     15,415,914$        17,348,590$         1,932,676$            12.54%

568,809,346$      7,104,015$          575,913,361$      577,061,141$       1,147,780$            0.20%

6,378,311$          6,378,311$          6,911,343$           533,032$               8.36%

OTHER CAPITAL REVENUE

Capital Grant Non-TCA 23,607,429$        23,607,429$        29,327,618$         5,720,189$            24.23%
Capital Grant Non-TCA (ST Int in Op'g Rev) -                       (189,561)               (189,561)               
Other Capital Non-TCA 250,000               250,000               59,598                  (190,402)               -76.16%

2,038,810            2,038,810            2,152,116             113,306                 5.56%
Capital Revenue 25,896,239$        -$                     25,896,239$        31,349,771$         5,453,532$            21.06%

601,083,896$      7,104,015$          608,187,911$      615,322,255$       7,134,344$            1.17%

OTHER YE & PSAB Adjustments 

Minor TCA to DCC (1,000,000)$         (1,000,000)$         (1,179,500)$          (179,500)$             17.95%

DCC Amortization Allocation 29,006,611          29,006,611          29,783,454           776,843                 2.68%

Registered Charity -                       447,657                447,657                 

24,325,000          24,325,000          25,617,339           1,292,339              5.31%
52,331,611$        -$                     52,331,611$        54,668,950$         2,337,339$            4.47%

653,415,507$      7,104,015$          660,519,522$      669,991,205$       9,471,683$            1.43%

2015-16 Revenue Summary (Operating to FS)

 Revised 
Estimates  Actuals Difference Revenue Revised 

Estimates 

 Adjustments 
Labour CA 

Increases (1) 

School Revenues
OTHER YE & PSAB Adjustments 
TOTAL REVENUE for Financial 
Statements

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE (Excl 
Cap/YE/PSAB impact)

GRANTS/REVENUE WITH EXPENSE 
OFFSETS

Other Capital Non-Depreciable TCA

TOTAL REVENUE before YE & PSAB 
Adjustments 
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Actuals
August 31, 2016

Salaries and Wages
CLASSROOM 371,388,970
NON-CLASSROOM 43,800,705

415,189,675
ADMINISTRATION 10,471,447
TRANSPORTATION 569,717
PUPIL ACCOMMODATION 26,162,557

Total 452,393,396

Employee Benefits
CLASSROOM 53,290,131
NON-CLASSROOM 6,870,689

60,160,820
ADMINISTRATION 2,415,067
TRANSPORTATION 147,287
PUPIL ACCOMMODATION 7,577,389

Total 70,300,563

Staff Development
CLASSROOM 687,033
NON-CLASSROOM 41,873
ADMINISTRATION 98,026
TRANSPORTATION 3,704
PUPIL ACCOMMODATION 26,185

Total 856,821

Supplies and Services
CLASSROOM 7,871,123
NON-CLASSROOM 1,484,060
ADMINISTRATION 1,359,541
TRANSPORTATION 14,911
PUPIL ACCOMMODATION 15,784,588

Total 26,514,223

Capital Expenditures
CLASSROOM 3,669,996
NON-CLASSROOM 95,010
ADMINISTRATION 49,158
TRANSPORTATION 0
PUPIL ACCOMMODATION 90,765

Total 3,904,929

Fees and Contractual Services
CLASSROOM 3,898,776
NON-CLASSROOM 645,565
ADMINISTRATION 1,471,348
TRANSPORTATION 15,121,435
PUPIL ACCOMMODATION 5,481,744

Total 26,618,868

Other Expenditures
CLASSROOM 85,735
NON-CLASSROOM 1,430
ADMINISTRATION 359,327
TRANSPORTATION 0
PUPIL ACCOMMODATION 1,933

Total 448,425

Total Expenditures 581,037,225

2015/16
Analysis By Object
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Expenditures by Function Summary 
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Expenditures by Object Summary 
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RECONCILIATION: OPERATING EXPENSES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING POSITION 581,037,226            

Expense with Revenue/Grant Offsets
Expense with Revenue/Grant Offsets 6,911,343                

6,911,343                
DCC & TCA activities

Minor TCA (Tsf to DCC) (1,179,500)               
Amortization TCA 29,926,393              

28,746,893              
"Capital" funded operating items:

Capital Fund Operating Grants 2,704,028                
Debt Charges Grant 19,904,047              
NPF  Debt Grant 224,087                   
EDC Operating Costs 59,598                     

22,891,760              
PSAB items:

Schools & Registered Charity Expenses 25,742,806              
Decrease in unfunded liabilities (PSAB-Debenture interest) (154,455)                  
Decrease in unfunded liabilities (PSAB-EFB) (1) -                           

25,588,351              

CONSOLIDATED EXPENSES FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 665,175,573            
(1)  Effective 2015-16 YE, PSAB-EFB will be incorporated into Operating position.  
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Not Permanently Financed (NPF) - Summary of Projects
As at August 31, 2016

 Net Amount for NPF 

MINISTRY FUNDED NPF

GROWTH / CAPITAL PRIORITIES / PTR / $120M
Post-June 2011 approvals
Our Lady of Good Counsel 215,634               
Pope Francis (Kleinburg) 2,013,411            
Guardian Angels (Blk 40) 326,078               
St Joseph Mkm (Cornell #3) 165,916               
Adjustment - Ministry error 243,548               

2,964,587            
CAPITAL PRIORITIES - LAND

Our Lady of Good Counsel 4,313,749            
St Joseph Mkm (Cornell #3) 1,992,146            
Adjustment

6,305,895            

TOTAL MAJOR CAPITAL NPF 9,270,482            

GPL 338                       
School Condition Improvement (SCI) 9,308,601            
ELP/FDK 2,105,435            

TOTAL MINISTRY FUNDED NPF ( in DCC and AR) 20,684,856          

EDC FUNDED:

No NPF - EDC Reserve by Year end -                        

TOTAL EDC FUNDED NPF (Part of ASD-UFC) -                        

NPF  AMOUNT AS AT YEAR END PER F/S 20,684,856          
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Ministry Funded NPF 

 
With the adoption of PS3410 Government Transfers, Ministry funded NPF of depreciable TCA 
of $11,376,255 in 2015-16 is part of DCC and included in Accounts Receivable from the 
Province for Approved Capital. 
 
While the pre-June 2011 approved Growth, PTR, Capital Priorities and GPL projects are to be 
financed via OFA upon “substantial” completion, post-June 2011 approved projects are paid via 
Ministry transfer payments.  2014-15 saw the end in capital spending under the old capital 
funding model (NPP/Growth/PTR) and 2015-16 saw the last issuance of Ontario Financing 
Authority (OFA) loan for the Board.   

 
Education Development Charges: Sites 

 
The current portion of unfinanced site purchases $0 (2015-$2,038,814) marks the elimination of 
the EDC deficit.  As at August 31, 2016, there is an EDC Deferred Revenue of $6,098,514. 
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1.  2015-16 Financial Results 
Financial Compliance Results 

Cumulative Results 

Reconciliation from Operating to Consolidated Financial Statements 

2. Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 

3. Auditors’ Report to Audit Committee  

4. Overview & Recommendations 

5. Appendices 
A:  Capital Trends  

B:  Risks & Opportunities  
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2015-16 Financial Results 
 

 

FINANCIAL 
COMPLIANCE 

RESULTS 
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2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 

2015-16 Financial Operating Results 

OVERVIEW 
 No Financial Compliance Deficit  
 Compliance with Ministry Envelopes 
  Special Education 
  Pupil Accommodation 
  New: Student Achievement Envelope (Six LOG) 
Administration & Governance Envelope Deferred 

 In-year Compliance Deficit 
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2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL POSITION SUMMARY 

#/$ %

569,610,922$         577,061,141$         7,450,219$        1.31%

569,562,899$         581,037,226$         11,474,327$      2.01%

1,515,513              1,383,722              (131,791)           -8.70%

(1,467,490)$         (5,359,807)$         (3,892,317)$    265.24%

Registered Charity (24,663)                 (44,935)                 (20,272)             82.20%

Committed Sinking Fund Commitment (683,480)$              (142,939)$              540,541$           -79.09%

Ministry Compliance (Deficit) (2,175,633)$         (5,547,681)$         (3,372,048)$    154.99%

Financial Position Summary

2014-15 2015-16 
Difference

Oher Compliance items:

Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses

Net Operating (Deficit)

Employee Future Benefit (PSAB) Item
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2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 

2015-16 Financial Operating Results 

OVERVIEW 
Comparative using Revised Estimates: 

 Estimates used for Consolidated Financial Statements, but not true 
Board “budget” 

 “Budget” now “audited” (“unaudited” for prior years) 
From Compliance to Consolidated Financial Statements 

 Board perspective:  focus change to in-year compliance  revenues & 
expenses (including relevant Committed/PSAB Items): compliance 
position focus 

 
 

 
 
Total perspective: Consolidated Financial Statements 

Operating 
focus (Past) 

Committed/ 
PSAB Items 

Compliance 
focus 

(Present) 
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2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 

#/$ %

Grants for Student Needs (GSN) 553,393,432$   7,104,015$         560,497,447$      559,712,551$      (784,896)$        -0.14%
Other Grants -                    -                       164,337                 164,337             
Other Revenue 8,381,613           8,381,613              9,749,440              1,367,827           16.32%
Continuing Education Other 7,034,301           7,034,301              7,434,813              400,512             5.69%

568,809,346$   7,104,015$         575,913,361$      577,061,141$      1,147,780$       0.20%

Operating Expenses   573,370,166$   573,370,166$      581,037,226$      7,667,060$       1.34%
Employee Future Benefit (PSAB) Item 2,216,216           2,216,216              1,383,722              (832,494)          -37.56%

575,586,382$   -$                    575,586,382$      582,420,948$      6,834,566$       1.19%

(6,777,036)$     7,104,015$         326,979$             (5,359,807)$         (5,686,786)$     -1739.19%

Other Compliance Items
Registered Charity -$                 -$                     (44,935)$              (44,935)$          #DIV/0!
Committed Sinking Fund Commitment (683,480)$        (683,480)$            (142,939)$            540,541$          -79.09%

MINISTRY COMPLIANCE POSITION (7,460,516)$     7,104,015$         (356,501)$            (5,547,681)$         (5,191,180)$     1456.15%

(1)  Adjustment is for the additional grants related to central Collective Agreement terms (Grid movements and 1% Lump sum payments)

NET OPERATING SURPLUS / 
(DEFICIT)

OPERATING REVENUE (Excluding 
Capital/PSAB/YE)

Operating Revenue (Excluding 
Capital/PSAB/YE)

Operating Expenses & EFB/PSAB Items

2015-16 Annual Compliance Operating Results
 

Revenue 
Revised 

Estimates

Adjustments 
Labour CA 

Increases (1)

2015-16 Adjusted 
Revenue Revised 

Estimates

2015-16              
Actuals

Difference

OPERATING EXPENSES & EFB/PSAB 
ITEMS
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Operating Revenues 
 2015-16 Actual  

Grants for 
Student Needs 

96.99% 

Other Grants 
0.03% 

Other Revenue 
1.69% 

Continuing Ed 
(non-GSN) 

1.29% 

Grants for Student Needs
Other Grants

2015-16 Actuals %
OPERATING REVENUE
Grants for Student Needs 559,712,551$    96.99%
Other Grants 164,337               0.03%
Other Revenue 9,749,440           1.69%
Continuing Ed (non-GSN) 7,434,813           1.29%

577,061,141$    100.00%
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2015-16 Operating Expenses 
 Expenses by Function & Object 

BY FUNCTION BY OBJECT 



10 

2015-16 Financial Compliance Results 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 

 2014-15 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit) 
Opening 

 Release of SF 
Commitment) 

 2014-15 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit) After 

SF 
Commitment 

Release 

 Total In- Year 
Increase / 
(Decrease) 

(Note 1)  

 2015-16 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit)  

 Board Established:  - Available for Compliance 
("ASD-AFC") Unappropriated 

 In Year 
(Utilization)  

 In Year 
Increase or 
(Decrease) 

Technology Infrastructure 75,972               75,972                (74,887)         (1,085)           (75,972)           -                   
21st Century Learning 94                       94                        (94)                 (94)                   -                   
Strategic Planning 400,719             400,719              (343,198)       (57,521)         (400,719)         -                   

 Funding Stability 2,457,712         12,000,000     14,457,712        (4,345,524)   (4,345,524)      10,112,188     

Board Established:  Total Unappropriated 2,934,497         12,000,000     14,934,497        (418,085)       (4,404,224)   (4,822,309)      10,112,188     

 Board Established:  AS-AFC Appropriated 

General School Budgets (GSB Carryforward) 1,119,027         1,119,027          (537,498)       (537,498)         581,529          

 Unfunded Employee Future Benefits: -                     -                      
    Claims Fluctuation -WSIB & LTD Waiver (2) 5,007,986         5,007,986          -                   5,007,986       

-                     -                      
Board Established:  Total Appropriated 6,127,013         -                    6,127,013          (537,498)       -                 (537,498)         5,589,515       

 Total Board Established:  ASD-AFC Before 
Committed Items 9,061,510         12,000,000     21,061,510        (955,583)       (4,404,224)   (5,359,807)      15,701,703     

Accumulated Surplus / Deficit 2015-16

 In-Year 
Increase/Decrease Details 



2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 

2015-16 Ministry Compliance Position 

 2014-15 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit) 
Opening 

 Release of SF 
Commitment) 

 2014-15 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit) After 

SF 
Commitment 

Release 

 Total In- Year 
Increase / 
(Decrease) 

(Note 1)  

 2015-16 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit)  

 Total Board Established:  ASD-AFC Before 
Committed Items 9,061,510         12,000,000     21,061,510        (955,583)       (4,404,224)   (5,359,807)      15,701,703     

 Registered Charity 262,241             262,241              (44,935)         (44,935)           217,306          

 Total Board Established & Registered Charity:  
ASD-AFC Before Committed S/F 9,323,751         12,000,000     21,323,751        (1,000,518)   (4,404,224)   (5,404,742)      15,919,009     

 Committed Sinking Fund interest earned 15,173,249       (12,000,000)    3,173,249          (142,939)       (142,939)         3,030,310       

 Total Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) - Available 
for Compliance 24,497,000       -                    24,497,000        (1,143,457)   (4,404,224)   (5,547,681)      18,949,319     

Accumulated Surplus / Deficit 2015-16

 In-Year 
Increase/Decrease Details 
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CUMULATIVE 
RESULTS 

 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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Cumulative Results 
 Accumulated Surplus – Total Perspective 

    No Unsupported Capital Outlay 

   Deferred Revenues (Ministry Required) 

 Accumulated Surplus/Deficit – Available for 
Compliance (ASD-AFC) 
 Trends (including Enrolment trends) 

 Accumulated Surplus/Deficit – Unavailable for    
Compliance (ASD-UFC) 
 Future Employee Benefits Payable (EFB) 

 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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2015-16 Deferred Revenue (Ministry Required) 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 

Revenue 
recognized in the 

period

 Special Education (inc. SEA)                   521,335 70,978,322             (70,855,091)            644,566                  
 Internal Audit                2,247,406 1,122,780               (943,024)                 2,427,162               
 Mental Health Leader                              -   119,832                   (119,832)                 -                           
 Student Achievement                              -   2,922,009               (2,922,009)              -                           
 Energy Efficient Schools - Op'g                   270,531 150,000                   (317,294)                 103,237                  
 EPO Grants                     14,056 3,212,427               (3,169,161)              57,322                    
 Banker Board Equity                              -   125,000                   (125,000)                 -                           
 Ministry of Training Colleges & 
University 

160,446                   (160,446)                 -                           

 Other Prov'l Grants (MCI & Other)                   268,339 220,000                   (348,197)                 140,142                  
 Third Party                     70,555 44,475                     (100,219)                 14,811                    
 Non-Ministry  2,283,081               (2,029,059)              254,022                  
 YCDSB Programs 811,390                   (732,523)                 78,867                    
 Minor Tangible Capital Asset                              -   14,000,176             (12,820,677)            (1,179,499)              -                           
 School Renewal                4,885,123 7,151,705               (1,754,196)              (2,788,891)              7,493,741               
 Interest on Capital                              -   20,093,609             (20,093,609)            -                           
 Temporary Accommodation                              -   1,160,000               (949,832)                 (124,903)                 85,265                    
 School Condition Improvement                 1,126,908 (1,126,908)              -                           
 Retrofitting for Childcare                3,322,854 -                           (100,441)                 3,222,413               
 Proceeds of Disposition                6,854,335 8,235,477               (14,953,997)            135,815                  
 Education Development Charges                              -   10,580,547             (4,482,033)              6,098,514               

TOTAL 19,581,442            143,371,276           (121,922,202)          (20,274,639)            20,755,877            

Deferred Revenue - Ministry Required
2015-16

Balance as at 
August 31, 2015

Balance as at 
August 31, 2016

Transfers to 
deferred capital 

contributions (DCC)

Externally 
restricted revenue 

and investment 
income
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2015-16 Accumulated Surplus/Deficit:  Total Perspective 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 

 2014-15 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit) 
Opening 

 Release of SF 
Commitment) 

 2014-15 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit) After 

SF 
Commitment 

Release 

 Total In- Year 
Increase / 
(Decrease)   

 2015-16 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit)  

 Board Established:  - Available for Compliance 
("ASD-AFC") Unappropriated 

 In Year 
(Utilization)  

 In Year 
Increase or 
(Decrease) 

Technology Infrastructure 75,972               75,972                (74,887)         (1,085)           (75,972)           -                   
21st Century Learning 94                       94                        (94)                 (94)                   -                   
Strategic Planning 400,719             400,719              (343,198)       (57,521)         (400,719)         -                   

 Funding Stability 2,457,712         12,000,000     14,457,712        (4,345,524)   (4,345,524)      10,112,188     

Board Established:  Total Unappropriated 2,934,497         12,000,000     14,934,497        (418,085)       (4,404,224)   (4,822,309)      10,112,188     

 Board Established:  AS-AFC Appropriated 

General School Budgets (GSB Carryforward) 1,119,027         1,119,027          (537,498)       (537,498)         581,529          

 Unfunded Employee Future Benefits: -                     -                      
    Claims Fluctuation -WSIB & LTD Waiver (2) 5,007,986         5,007,986          -                   5,007,986       

-                     -                      
Board Established:  Total Appropriated 6,127,013         -                    6,127,013          (537,498)       -                 (537,498)         5,589,515       

 Total Board Established:  ASD-AFC Before 
Committed Items 9,061,510         12,000,000     21,061,510        (955,583)       (4,404,224)   (5,359,807)      15,701,703     

 Registered Charity 262,241             262,241              (44,935)         (44,935)           217,306          

 Total Board Established & Registered Charity:  
ASD-AFC Before Committed S/F 9,323,751         12,000,000     21,323,751        (1,000,518)   (4,404,224)   (5,404,742)      15,919,009     

 Committed Sinking Fund interest earned 15,173,249       (12,000,000)    3,173,249          (142,939)       (142,939)         3,030,310       

 Total Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) - Available 
for Compliance 24,497,000       -                    24,497,000        (1,143,457)   (4,404,224)   (5,547,681)      18,949,319     

 Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) - Unavailable for 
Compliance ("ASD-UFC") 

 Employee Future Benefits: 
   Retirement Gratuities (3) (13,662,171)      (13,662,171)       1,366,217     17,505          1,383,722       (12,278,449)   
   Other Benefits (WSIB & LTD Waivers) (2) (5,007,986)        (5,007,986)         -                   (5,007,986)      

-                   
 Debenture Interest Accrual (4,282,859)        (4,282,859)         154,455        154,455          (4,128,404)      
 School Generated Funds 7,467,399         7,467,399          367,126        367,126          7,834,525       
 Revenues Recognized for Land 205,320,843     205,320,843      6,419,201     6,419,201       211,740,044  
 NPF - EDC (2,038,810)        (2,038,810)         2,038,810     2,038,810       -                   

 Total Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) - 
Unavailable for Compliance 187,796,416     -                    187,796,416      10,345,809  17,505          10,363,314     198,159,730  

 Total Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit)  212,293,416     -                    212,293,416      9,202,352     (4,386,719)   4,815,633       217,109,049  

Accumulated Surplus / Deficit 2015-16

 In-Year 
Increase/Decrease Details 

Board 
Operating 
Focus

Mandatory 
Committed 
Funds

Ministy 
Compliance

Future Board 
responsibility 
over EARSL

Potential 
Future Board 
responsibility
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Operating Accumulated Deficit History 1988 - 2016 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 

-0.65 
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Accumulated Deficit History 1988-2016 
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. Note:  Sinking fund interest impacts in Red 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 

Low risk boards 
must have 2% 
Accumulated 
Surplus.   
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2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 

2014-15, without 
and with FDK 

2,218 
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  2002 to 2016 
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Note:  Full Day Kindergarten (FDK) Enrolment included for 2010-11 through 2014-15 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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Accumulated Surplus:  Unavailable for Compliance 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 

 2014-15 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit) 
Opening 

 Total In- Year 
Increase / 
(Decrease) 

(Note 1)  

 2015-16 
Accumulated 

Surplus / 
(Deficit)  

 Total Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) - Available 
for Compliance 24,497,000       (1,143,457)   (4,404,224)   (5,547,681)      18,949,319     

 Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) - Unavailable for 
Compliance ("ASD-UFC") 

 Employee Future Benefits: 
   Retirement Gratuities (3) (13,662,171)      1,366,217     17,505          1,383,722       (12,278,449)   
   Other Benefits (WSIB & LTD Waivers) (2) (5,007,986)        -                   (5,007,986)      

-                   
 Debenture Interest Accrual (4,282,859)        154,455        154,455          (4,128,404)      
 School Generated Funds 7,467,399         367,126        367,126          7,834,525       
 Revenues Recognized for Land 205,320,843     6,419,201     6,419,201       211,740,044  
 NPF - EDC (2,038,810)        2,038,810     2,038,810       -                   

 Total Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) - 
Unavailable for Compliance 187,796,416     10,345,809  17,505          10,363,314     198,159,730  

 Total Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit)  212,293,416     9,202,352     (4,386,719)   4,815,633       217,109,049  

Accumulated Surplus / Deficit 2015-16

 In-Year 
Increase/Decrease Details 
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Accumulated Surplus/Deficit – Unavailable for Compliance 

 
 Employee Future Benefits ($17.3M) 

 Board responsibility commencing 2012-13 
 Interest Accrual ($4.1M) 
 School Generated Funds $7.8M 
 Tangible Capital Asset – Non-depreciable assets only 

 Land in surplus of $211.7M 
 EDC deficit of $0 (eliminated in 2015-16) 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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Future Employee Benefits Payable (PSAB) 
•   Externally calculated actuarial valuations 

•  Significant $’s:  Future implications 

  

Refer to Note 6  of the “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements” 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 

2016 2015  Increase 

Retirement Gratuities 13,484,645$   14,716,572$      (1,231,927)      

Retiree Benefits Premiums 323,086           585,861              (262,775)         

Compensated Absences 345,035           350,442              (5,407)              

Disability Waiver 440,347           357,241              83,106             

14,593,113$   16,010,116$      (1,417,003)      
WSIB 3,898,757        3,682,417           216,340           

TOTAL 18,491,870$   19,692,533$      (1,200,663)      

FUTURE EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

2015-16
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RECONCILIATION: 
Operating Revenue & Expenses 

To  
Consolidated Revenue & Expenses 

 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL RESULTS 
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2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 

 #/$ %

OPERATING REVENUE
Grants for Student Needs (GSN) 553,393,432$      7,104,015$          560,497,447$      559,712,551$       (784,896)$             -0.14%

Other Grants -                       -                       164,337                164,337                 
Other Revenue 8,381,613            8,381,613            9,749,440             1,367,827              16.32%
Continuing Education Other 7,034,301            7,034,301            7,434,813             400,512                 5.69%

15,415,914$        -$                     15,415,914$        17,348,590$         1,932,676$            12.54%

568,809,346$      7,104,015$          575,913,361$      577,061,141$       1,147,780$            0.20%

6,378,311$          6,378,311$          6,911,343$           533,032$               8.36%

OTHER CAPITAL REVENUE

Capital Grant Non-TCA 23,607,429$        23,607,429$        29,327,618$         5,720,189$            24.23%
Capital Grant Non-TCA (ST Int in Op'g Rev) -                       (189,561)               (189,561)               
Other Capital Non-TCA 250,000               250,000               59,598                  (190,402)               -76.16%

2,038,810            2,038,810            2,152,116             113,306                 5.56%
Capital Revenue 25,896,239$        -$                     25,896,239$        31,349,771$         5,453,532$            21.06%

601,083,896$      7,104,015$          608,187,911$      615,322,255$       7,134,344$            1.17%

OTHER YE & PSAB Adjustments 

Minor TCA to DCC (1,000,000)$         (1,000,000)$         (1,179,500)$          (179,500)$             17.95%

DCC Amortization Allocation 29,006,611          29,006,611          29,783,454           776,843                 2.68%

Registered Charity -                       447,657                447,657                 

24,325,000          24,325,000          25,617,339           1,292,339              5.31%
52,331,611$        -$                     52,331,611$        54,668,950$         2,337,339$            4.47%

653,415,507$      7,104,015$          660,519,522$      669,991,205$       9,471,683$            1.43%

2015-16 Revenue Summary (Operating to FS)

 Revised 
Estimates  Actuals Difference Revenue Revised 

Estimates 

 Adjustments 
Labour CA 

Increases (1) 

School Revenues
OTHER YE & PSAB Adjustments 
TOTAL REVENUE for Financial 
Statements

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE (Excl 
Cap/YE/PSAB impact)

GRANTS/REVENUE WITH EXPENSE 
OFFSETS

Other Capital Non-Depreciable TCA

TOTAL REVENUE before YE & PSAB 
Adjustments 
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YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 

RECONCILIATION: OPERATING EXPENSES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING POSITION 581,037,226            

Expense with Revenue/Grant Offsets
Expense with Revenue/Grant Offsets 6,911,343                

6,911,343                
DCC & TCA activities

Minor TCA (Tsf to DCC) (1,179,500)               
Amortization TCA 29,926,393              

28,746,893              
"Capital" funded operating items:

Capital Fund Operating Grants 2,704,028                
Debt Charges Grant 19,904,047              
NPF  Debt Grant 224,087                   
EDC Operating Costs 59,598                     

22,891,760              
PSAB items:

Schools & Registered Charity Expenses 25,742,806              
Decrease in unfunded liabilities (PSAB-Debenture interest) (154,455)                  
Decrease in unfunded liabilities (PSAB-EFB) (1) -                           

25,588,351              

CONSOLIDATED EXPENSES FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 665,175,573            
(1)  Effective 2015-16 YE, PSAB-EFB will be incorporated into Operating position.  
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AUDITED 
CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 
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Audited Consolidated Financial Statements  
 Management Report – responsibility to financials 
 Independent Auditors’ Report 
 CONSOLDIATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS  
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT 
 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 
 MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 Signed by Director of Education and Chief 

Financial Officer (Treasurer) 
 Consolidated Financial Statements audited by 

Grant Thornton 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 No Changes  General Purpose 
 Not qualified re: school funds 
 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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Audited Financial Statements 

Statement of Financial Position 
 The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position shows the financial 

assets, liabilities, non-financial assets  

Statement of Operations 
  The Consolidated Statement of Operations shows the revenues, 

expenses and resulting annual surplus/(deficit) 
 
   Budget no longer “unaudited” 
 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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2014-15 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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Notes for 2015-16 
The Board’s Statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
Financial Administration Act, supplemented by Ontario Ministry of 
Education memorandum 2004:B2 and Ontario Regulation 395/11 of the 
Financial Administration Act.  Details of the basis of accounting are 
described in Note 1 to the Statements. 
 
There are new notes for 2015-16…of note: 

• Note #3:  Subsequent to year-end, the Board entered into an offer 
to purchase agreement for the sale of surplus land on October 27, 
2016.    The purchase agreement is subject to due diligence 
procedures and is expected to close February 28, 2017 for gross 
proceeds of $19,690,000. 

 
• Note #6:  Benefit Plan Future Changes:  Provincial Employee Life 

and Health Trusts (ELHTs) will be established during 2016-17.  
These ELHTs will replace the Board’s current employee benefit 
plans for Life, Health and Dental plans. 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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AUDITOR’S REPORT TO 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

2015-16 
FINANCIAL RESULTS 



35 

AUDITOR’S REPORT TO AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 Audit Results, Reportable Matters 

 Technical Updates 
 Independent Auditor’s Report 
 Management Representation Letter 
 Internal Control Findings 

 
 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO AUDIT COMMITTEE 
REPRESENTATION LETTER 
 Standard Management Representation 
 All information has been made available to the 

Auditors, confirmation of data being accurate and 
complete, no significant information has been 
withheld. 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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OVERVIEW & 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

2015-16 
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2015-16 Financial Cumulative Results 

OVERVIEW 
  “Compliant” Deficit  
 Compliance with Ministry Envelopes 

  Special Education 
  Pupil Accommodation 
  New: Student Achievement Envelope (Six 

LOG) 
Administration & Governance Envelope Deferred 

 Management of Accumulated Surplus - Available for 
Compliance & EFBs in Unavailable for Compliance 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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RECOMMENDATIONS 

THAT the Board approve the 2015-16 Financial Statements of the 
York Catholic District School Board as audited by Grant Thornton 
LLP, Chartered Accountants. 

THAT the Board publish a notice in local newspapers that the 
2015-16 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the York 
Catholic School Board, together with the Auditor’s Report, will be 
made available as part of the Board’s regular publications and posted 
on the Board’s website. 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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APPENDIX A: 

CAPITAL TRENDS 

 

2015-16 
FINANCIAL RESULTS 
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Capital Trends  
Capital Expenditures are dependent on Ministry funding: 
The following charts will provide some trend analysis for period 2000-2016: 

 Site Expenditures financed by EDC (Year end EDC Reserve $6M) 
 Capital Construction Expenditures & Site Purchases (Year End 

NPF balance $20.7M– fully funded) 
 Facilities Renewal Expenditures includes: 

 School Renewal Allocation (SRA, formerly FRP) annual funding 
 School Conditions Improvement (SCI) funding 
 Early Learning Program (ELP) funding 
 Proceeds of Disposition (POD) 
 Temporary Accommodation Grant (TAG) 
 Retrofit for Childcare Spaces  

Also provided NPF Year end Balance Summary 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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Not Permanently Financed (NPF) - Summary of Projects
As at August 31, 2016

 Net Amount for NPF 

MINISTRY FUNDED NPF

GROWTH / CAPITAL PRIORITIES / PTR / $120M
Post-June 2011 approvals
Our Lady of Good Counsel 215,634               
Pope Francis (Kleinburg) 2,013,411            
Guardian Angels (Blk 40) 326,078               
St Joseph Mkm (Cornell #3) 165,916               
Adjustment - Ministry error 243,548               

2,964,587            
CAPITAL PRIORITIES - LAND

Our Lady of Good Counsel 4,313,749            
St Joseph Mkm (Cornell #3) 1,992,146            
Adjustment

6,305,895            

TOTAL MAJOR CAPITAL NPF 9,270,482            

GPL 338                       
School Condition Improvement (SCI) 9,308,601            
ELP/FDK 2,105,435            

TOTAL MINISTRY FUNDED NPF ( in DCC and AR) 20,684,856          

EDC FUNDED:

No NPF - EDC Reserve by Year end -                        

TOTAL EDC FUNDED NPF (Part of ASD-UFC) -                        

NPF  AMOUNT AS AT YEAR END PER F/S 20,684,856          
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Risks & Opportunities  
The following highlights area of future focus and/or concern: 
 Labour Impacts:   
 Costly Central terms – Benefits, ELP 
 Sick leave continues to be fiscal pressure 
 External/provincial factors 

 Technological Changes: 
 Fast paced changes & increasing demands while funding has not kept pace 
 Need for financial analytics and reporting to keep pace with Ministry SBEM strategy 

 Board Profile Changes:   
 Declining board with significant excess capacity 
 Future GSN targeted reductions/reallocations expected 

 Capital funding changing focus (Consolidations/Renewal/Childcare/Community Hubs) 
 POD management 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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Risks & Opportunities (Cont’d) 
The following highlights areas of future focus and/or concern: 
 The Board has approved the engagement of a Ministry supported 

consultant to assist Senior Administration to complete a Multi-Year 
Recovery Plan (MYRP) to identify strategies to bring the Board into 
balanced budget position. 

 All departments will participate in the development of  the MYRP  
 Implementation and monitoring of the MYRP recommendations will 

be required 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 
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 Questions 

2015-16 
YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT 



 
 York Catholic District School Board 

 Report To: Audit Committee 
 
  From: Administration 
 
  Date: November 8, 2016 
 
 Subject: Approval of 2015-16 Audited Financial Statements   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this report is to present for action, the motions necessary to approve and publish the 2015-
16 Audited Financial Statements.     
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Included as part Agenda Item #9 of the Regular Session of the Audit Committee was a detailed review 
and presentation of the 2015-16 Year-End Financial results and associated Financial Statements.  
 
Included as part of Agenda Item #8 of the In Camera Session of the Audit Committee was a presentation 
from the External Auditor on their year-end audit results.    Also included as part of the In Camera agenda 
(Agenda Item #9) was an opportunity for the Audit Committee to meet in private with the External 
Auditors relating to the year-end audit process.   
 
Based on the satisfactory review of the above, the following recommendations are presented for Audit 
Committee approval: 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

1. THAT the Board approve the 2015-16 Consolidated Financial Statements of the York 
Catholic District School Board as audited by Grant Thornton LLP, Chartered Accountants. 

 
2. THAT the Board publish a notice in local newspapers that the 2015-16 Audited Consolidated 

Financial Statements of the York Catholic School Board, together with the Auditors’ 
Report, will be made available, as part of the Board’s regular publications and posted on the 
Board’s website. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared and Submitted by:   Anna Chan, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Board 
Endorsed by: Patricia Preston, Director of Education 

Report 



 
  

 York Catholic District School Board 

 
 Report To: Audit Committee 
 
  From: Administration 
 
  Date: November 8, 2016 
 
 Report: Auditor’s Report:  EDUCATION DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this report is to present for action the motion to approve the 2015-16 Education 
Development Charges (EDC) Financial Statements for York Catholic District School Board. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Attached are the draft audited August 31, 2016 Financial Statements as audited by Grant Thornton LLP 
and summaries of Education Development Charges (EDC) for the York Catholic District School Board 
and for the York Region District School Board.  These represent the collection and distribution of EDC’s 
for: 

• BY-LAW #6 (officially as noted in the summaries as B/L#205 for YCDSB) for the period 
commencing July 1, 2014 and ending August 31, 2016.   

 
EDC’s are collected and distributed jointly between the Boards.  Each month, EDC collections are 
distributed to each Board.   
 
On July 1, 2014, a new EDC By-Law #6 came into effect.  The following shows B/L #6 rates for 
Education Development Charges: 
 
By-Law  Combined York Catholic District 

School Board 
York Region District 

School Board 
#6 
 

Residential Development per dwelling 
unit 

$4,340 $991 $3,349 

#6 
 

Non-Residential Development per square 
foot of GFA 

$0.75 $0.17 $0. 58 

 
  

REPORT 



 
  

 
HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The following is a summary of E.D.C. collections for B/L #6 collected from July 1, 2014 to August 31, 
2016 and for all By-Laws since the inception of E.D.C. in 1992 (See Appendix A for details): 
 
 Total  

 
York Catholic 
District School 

Board 

York Region 
District School 

Board 

French Boards 

By-Law #6 $72,067,025 
  
 

$16,445,361 $55,621,664 n/a 

By-Law #1 to # 6 (1992 to 
2016) 

$576,629,027 
 

$189,172,313 
 

$386,871,459 $585,255 

 
 
Note:  For 2015-16, EDC collections were sufficient to fund all EDC eligible site purchases and the 
residual collections of $6,098,514 were reflected as Deferred Revenues in the Board’s audited 2015-16 
Financial Statements.   Up to 2014-15, there was an EDC deficit which was reported under Accumulated 
Surplus – Not Available for Compliance representing “not-permanently-financed” (NPF) site purchases 
(2014-15 - $2 million).     
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT the Board approve the Education Development Charge Financial Statements for the York 
Catholic District School Board for the period ended August 31, 2016 as audited by Grant Thornton 
LLP. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by:   Carol Recine, Manager, Purchasing Services 
Submitted & Endorsed by:      Anna Chan, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Board 



 
  

APPENDIX A 
 
 
 

 

             York Region - Summary of Education Development Charges  (By-Law #1 to By-Law #6)
             As at August 31, 2016

BY-LAW #1 BY-LAW #2 BY-LAW #3 BY-LAW #4 BY-LAW #5 BY-LAW #6

1992 - 1996 1996-1999 2000-2004
2004-2009 (to 

July 2009)
Aug 2009 to   

July 2014
Aug 2014 to 

Aug 2016 CUMULATIVE

EDC COLLECTIONS:
Residential 72,413,149 87% 59,913,998 81% 149,881,897 90% 75,300,807 89% 87,026,222 91% 67,362,340 93% 511,898,413 89%
Non-Residential 10,781,328 13% 13,858,952 19% 15,895,998 10% 9,636,591 11% 9,057,820 9% 4,743,483 7% 63,974,172 11%

Total Collected 83,194,477 100% 73,772,950 100% 165,777,895 100% 84,937,398 100% 96,084,042 100% 72,105,823 100% 575,872,585 100%

Transfer to/from By-Laws (32,234) 32,234 -                    
Refunds (630,279) (24,111) (61,300) (28,851) (84,155) (77,097) (905,793)
Bank Fees (2,364) (2,364)
Interest earned 553,593 746,698 218,358 69,989 37,662 38,299 1,664,599

NET EDC COLLECTIONS 83,085,557 74,527,771 165,934,953 84,978,536 96,035,185 72,067,025 576,629,027

DISTRIBUTIONS:
CSD-Centre Sud-Quest 277,371 277,371
CSD Cath Sud-Quest 307,884 307,884
YRDSB 58,921,965 71% 49,555,323 66% 96,823,045 58% 60,864,475 72% 65,084,987 68% 55,621,664 77% 386,871,459 67%
YCDSB 24,163,592 29% 24,387,193 33% 69,111,908 42% 24,114,061 28% 30,950,198 32% 16,445,361 23% 189,172,313 33%

TOTAL DISTRIBUTIONS 83,085,557 100% 74,527,771 100% 165,934,953 100% 84,978,536 100% 96,035,185 100% 72,067,025 100% 576,629,027 100%

Undistributed EDC 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Trustees of   

York Catholic District School Board 

We have audited the accompanying Summary Schedule of Education Development Charges (“summary 

schedule”) of York Catholic District School Board for the year ended August 31, 2016, and the 

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

Management’s responsibility for the financial information 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the Summary Schedule of Education Development 

Charges in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control 

as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Summary Schedule of 

Education Development Charges that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this Summary Schedule of Education Development 

Charges based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 

auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Summary Schedule of Education 

Development Charges is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial information. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Summary Schedule of Education Development 

Charges, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 

control relevant to the Board’s preparation of the Summary Schedule of Education Development 

Charges in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control. An audit also 

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 

Summary Schedule of Education Development Charges. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Summary Schedule of Education Development Charges of York Catholic District 

School Board for the year ended August 31, 2016 presents fairly, in all material respects, the revenue 

and distributions of Education Development Charges of York Catholic District School Board in 

accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.  

 
Toronto, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants 
November 8, 2016 Licensed Public Accountants 
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York Catholic District School Board 
By-Law # 6 
Summary Schedule of Education Development Charges 
     Cumulative 
Year ended August 31 2016 2015 2014 Total 
 
Revenue, collected 

 Residential $  7,901,344 $  7,168,565 $  308,913 $ 15,378,822 

 Non-residential   413,430   641,980   19,938   1,075,348 

      8,314,774   7,810,545   328,851  16,454,170 

   

 Interest earned    3,765   5,164   -   8,929 

 Bank charges   (82)   (106)   -   (188) 

      8,318,457   7,815,603   328,851   16,462,911 

 

Distributions 

 Refunds   8,227   9,321   -   17,548 

 York Catholic District School Board   8,310,230   7,806,282   328,851   16,445,363 

      8,318,457   7,815,603   328,851   16,462,911 

 

Under (over) distribution of  

 education development charges $  - $  - $  - $  - 
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York Catholic District School Board 
Notes to the Summary Schedule of Education 
Development Charges 
August 31, 2016 
 

1.  Nature of operations 

 

Education Development charges are imposed by the York Catholic District School Board 
against residential and non-residential development, in order to recover growth-related net 
education land costs, as determined in compliance with the Education Act and its associated 
Regulations.  The summary schedule represents Education Development Charges for By-Law 
#205 for the period July 1, 2014 to August 31, 2016. 
 

 

2.  Summary of significant accounting policies  

 

Basis of presentation  

 

The summary schedule has been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.   

 

Use of estimates 
 
In preparing the summary schedule, management is required to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the summary schedule and reported amounts of 
revenue and distributions during the period.  Actual results could differ from these estimates. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Trustees of   

York Region District School Board 

We have audited the accompanying Summary Schedule of Education Development Charges (“summary 

schedule”) of York Region District School Board for the year ended August 31, 2016, and the summary 

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

Management’s responsibility for the financial information 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the Summary Schedule of Education Development 

Charges in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 

management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Summary Schedule of Education 

Development Charges that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this Summary Schedule of Education Development 

Charges based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 

auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Summary Schedule of Education 

Development Charges is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial information. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Summary Schedule of Education Development 

Charges, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 

control relevant to the Board’s preparation of the Summary Schedule of Education Development Charges 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Summary Schedule of 

Education Development Charges. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Summary Schedule of Education Development Charges of York Region District 

School Board for the year ended August 31, 2016 presents fairly, in all material respects, the revenue and 

distributions of Education Development Charges of York Region District School Board in accordance 

with Canadian public sector accounting standards.  

  
Markham, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants 
December 13, 2016 Licensed Public Accountants



 

  3 

York Region District School Board 
By-Law # 6 
Summary Schedule of Education Development Charges 
       Cumulative 
Year ended August 31, 2016 2015 2014 Total 
 
Revenue, collected 

 Residential $  26,708,136 $  24,231,195 $  1,044,187 $  51,983,518 

 Non-residential   1,410,259   2,189,867   68,009   3,668,135 

      28,118,395   26,421,062   1,112,196   55,651,653 

   

 Interest earned    12,738   17,469   -   30,207 

 Bank charges   (288)   (359)   -   (647) 

      28,130,845   26,438,172   1,112,196   55,681,213 

 

Distributions 

 Refunds   27,855   31,695   -   59,550 

 York Region District School Board   28,102,990   26,406,477   1,112,196   55,621,663 

      28,130,845   26,438,172   1,112,196   55,681,213 

 

Under (over) distribution of education  

 development charges $  - $  - $  - $  - 
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York Region District School Board 
Notes to the Summary Schedule of Education 
Development Charges 
August 31, 2016 
 

1.  Nature of operations 

 

Education Development charges are imposed by the York Region District School Board against 
residential and non-residential development, in order to recover growth-related net education 
land costs, as determined in compliance with the Education Act and its associated Regulations.  
The summary schedule represents Education Development Charges for By-Law #6 for the 
period July 1, 2014 to August 31, 2016. 
 

 

2.  Summary of significant accounting policies  

 

Basis of presentation  

 

The summary schedule has been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.   

 

Use of estimates 
 
In preparing the summary schedule, management is required to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the summary schedule and reported amounts of 
revenue and distributions during the period.  Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

 

 



  
 
 
 York Catholic District School Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Report To: Audit Committee 
 
 From: Administration 
 
 Date: November 8, 2016 
 
 Subject: Annual Audit Committee Report to the Ministry of Education 
 
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
Attached is the Annual Audit Committee Report for submission to the Ministry of Education as 
required by Regulation 361/10.  
 
Per the Ministry in Memorandum 2015:SB30 “2014-15 Audit Committee Annual Report to the 
Ministry” (attached as Appendix B), the intent of the report is twofold: 
 

• A list of work performed by the internal auditors in the fiscal year provides a report to the 
Ministry on the use of the internal audit funding allocation; and 

• A list of planned enrolment audits for upcoming fiscal year allows better coordination of 
enrolment audits performed by the Ministry of Education and the regional internal 
auditors. 

 
The report (attached as Appendix A) gives a brief overview of the audit activity for the Regional 
Internal Audit Team as the report includes both audits conducted over the reporting period and 
audits that may be underway. The annual report is required to be signed by the Audit Committee 
Chair, presented to the Board by November 30 and submitted to the Ministry by January 15, 
2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Prepared by: Jackie Porter, Coordinating Manager of Budget & Audit Services 
Endorsed by: Anna Chan, CFO and Treasurer of the Board 
 

Report 
 



Annual Report to the Board of Trustees and Forwarded 
To the Ministry of Education  

For the year ended August 31, 2016 
 
 
 
November 5, 2016 
 
 
Fiscal Year: 2015/16 
 
Re: Annual Audit Committee report to the Ministry of Education as per 

Ontario Regulation 361/10 
 
During the 2015/16 fiscal year, the following audit(s) were completed and presented to the Audit 
Committee.  
 

Audit Type Date Completed Presented 
Payroll/Human 
Resource June 2016 June 2016 September 2016 

Information 
Systems-Asset 
Management 

June 2016 October 2016 November 2016 

 
Further, YCDSB Manager’s comments for the following audits were discussed to ensure 
timelines are being met. 

• Repairs and Maintenance Audit 
• Broader Public Sector Procurement Compliance Review 
• Construction 
• Information Technology 
• Special Education 

 
Based on the Multi-Year Internal Audit Plan, YCDSB is not expecting any Enrolment Audits to 
be performed in the 2016/17 fiscal year. 
 
 
 

_________________________  __________________________  
 Date Signature             
 Carol Cotton, Audit Committee Chair 
 
 
 









York Catholic District School Board 
 
 
 
 

 
 Memo To: Audit Committee 

  From: Administration 

  Date: November 5, 2016 

  Subject: Updates on Regional Internal Audit Consistency Measures 
 
Executive Summary: 
The Ministry has updated a number of processes in order to promote more consistency amongst Regional 
Internal Audit Teams (RIAT). The Ministry has updated three main areas: 

• Regional Internal Audit Performance Review 
• Regional Internal Audit Mandate 
• Regional Internal Audit Coordinator  

This report reflects only the Ministry’s Memorandum 2016: SB31.  Further work is required before 
implementation of the Regional Internal Audit Performance Reviews. 

Overview: 
Ministry Memo 2016: SB31 “Update on Regional Internal Audit Consistency Measures” (Appendix A) 
provides an update on measures being taken to promote more consistency among Regional Internal Audit 
Teams (RIAT). Due to the unique structure of RIAT, it is difficult for Host Boards to assess the 
performance of both the operations and the staff. The new Ministry evaluation process will assist with this 
issue and will ensure that RIATs operate under similar standards and align to the best practices of the 
Institute of Internal Audit.  
 
Regional Internal Audit Performance Review: 
The Regional Internal Audit Evaluation Process Guideline was updated effective September 1, 2016 to 
include the updated performance review process and provide the tools for boards and audit committees to 
complete the annual evaluation which are required to commence in September 2017 and will be based on 
the 2016/17 objectives and actual performance of the RIA. 

The Performance Evaluation will be comprised of assessments from three different sources: 

1. Evaluation of Regional Internal Audit - Audit Committee checklist (Appendix B):    

o Each audit committee member completes the checklist based on their interaction with the 
regional internal audit staff. This is discussed with the Regional Internal Audit Manager 
(RIAM) at the September Audit Committee meeting. The Host Board will use the completed 
checklist as part of the annual evaluation. 

2. Evaluation of Internal Audit – Management checklist (Appendix C & D):    

o Each Superintendent of Business (SBO) completes the checklist based on their interaction 
with the regional internal auditors and their observation of the auditors at audit committee 
meetings. A review of the post-audit client surveys, if available will also be reviewed. The 
SBO will collect the checklist from all the boards and prepare an overall evaluation form to 
provide to the RIAM. 

o The full checklist will need to be completed every three years starting with the 2016/17 
performance 
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3. Evaluation of Internal Audit – Self Assessment (Appendix E)  

o At the beginning of the year the RIAM sets a number of Key Performance Objectives for the 
year which are reviewed with the Host Board.  

o At year end, the RIAM is required to complete the self-assessment checklist based on the 
feedback received from the above sources, tying the assessment in with the Key Performance 
Objectives set and the achievement of these objectives. The self-assessment is submitted to 
the SBO. 

The SBO meets with the RIAM to discuss the self-assessment, taking into account the evaluations from 
the other parties. Once the assessment has been agreed upon, the Host Board SBO and the RIAM sign the 
self-assessment and the overall management evaluation. 
 
The RIAM conducts a similar self-assessment process for the evaluation of the other members of RIAT. 
The review of the Key Performance Objectives, post client surveys, and the self-assessment serve as the 
documents included in the review. 
 
The Performance Review documents are included in this agenda as information for the Audit Committee 
to review with detail discussion to occur at the next meeting. 
 
The Regional Internal Audit Performance Review documents are included in this agenda as information 
for the Audit Committee to review with detailed discussion to occur in future.  The information will 
require discussion with  the Toronto Area Regional Internal Audit Coordinating and Steering Committee 
(TA-RIA-CSC)  as well as at the Board. 
 
Regional Internal Audit Mandate: 
 
The Regional Internal Audit mandate has been updated. This mandate (Appendix F) defines the purpose, 
authority and responsibility of the regional internal audit function. The last time the mandate was revised 
was in 2010. 
 
The mandate was updated to be consistent with the standards of the Institute of Internal Audit. A number 
of areas have been removed (Accountability, Conflict Resolution, and Assessment). The Mandate updates 
and clearly defines the authority for RIAT, clearly outlines the responsibility for the Board’s Audit 
Committee as it related to the regional internal audit function, and outlines the responsibility of RIAT. 
 
The mandate will be presented to the Audit Committee annually for review and sign-off. 
 
Regional Internal Audit Coordinator: 
 
The Council of Ontario Directors of Education (CODE) has extended the Regional Internal Audit 
Coordinator (RIAC) position up to June 30, 2017. This position is the point person between the RIAM, 
the Boards, and the Ministry. This position was developed to support the RIATs in working with the 
Boards and the Ministry and still keeping their independence.  
 
The RIAC success to date includes increase the knowledge level within the sector, offer annual training 
session and create an environment for sharing best practices. 
 
 
Prepared By: & Submitted By:    Jackie Porter, Coordinating Manager of Budget and Audit Services 
Endorsed By:                     Anna Chan, CFO and Treasurer of the Board 
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	UNAPPROVED MINUTES
	Anna Chan, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Board, called the meeting to order at 3:01 p.m.
	THAT the Agenda be approved as presented.
	THAT the Minutes of the April  19, 2016 Audit Committee meeting be approved as presented.
	J. Porter, Coordinating Manager of Budget and Audit Services, provided an update as Host Board lead, on the activities of the provincially coordinated Regional Internal Audit (RIA) initiative. As previously reported, the provincial RIA initiative, whi...
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